
 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

August 3
rd

, 2015 

 

7:00 PM - Regular Meeting 

 

Historic Courtroom 

Courthouse Complex 

Page 1 of 134



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners August 3
rd
, 2015 

  Page 1 of 2 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and 

all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute 

discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

August 3
rd

, 2015 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 
 

 

7:00 P.M. Call to Order - Chairman P. Michael McLain  

 

 Welcome 

 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance – Commissioner Clayton Riggs 
 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 
 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of 

comments may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other 

issues. 
 

ITEM 2. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 3 Presentations 
 

A. North Carolina Forest Service – Steve Sutton   ......................................... (Pg. 4-7) 

 

B. Camden County OpenBudget – Mike Renshaw   .................................... (Pg. 8-10) 

 

C.  Camden County Sheriff’s Range – John Morrison ..................................... (Pg. 11) 
 

ITEM 4. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 
 

A. Ordinance No. 2015-06-03 - Proposed amendments to Chapter 151 (Unified 

Development Ordinance) of the Camden County Code Ordinances   ... (Pg. 12-19) 

 

ITEM 5. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

 

A. Monthly Tax Report - June   .................................................................. (Pg. 20-27) 

 

B. Senior Center Participant Code of Conduct Policy   .............................. (Pg. 28-31) 

 

ITEM 6. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 
 

A. EARL Board Appointment   .................................................................. (Pg. 32-34) 

 

Page 2 of 134



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners August 3
rd
, 2015 

  Page 2 of 2 

ITEM 7. Consent Agenda (All items listed below are routine and will be approved by one 

motion. Separate discussion of an item(s) will be held by request of a member of the 

Board.) 
 

A. Draft Minutes –  

  April 6
th
, 2015 ........................................................................... (Pg. 35-52) 

  April 20
th
, 2015 .................................................................. (Attachment A) 

B. Budget Amendments – BA001  ............................................................. (Pg. 53-54) 

C. Tax Collection Report   .......................................................................... (Pg. 55-56) 

D. Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases   ...................................................... (Pg. 57-59) 

E. Tax Authorization to Collect (September Renewals)  ........................... (Pg. 60-61) 

F. Volunteer Forms   ....................................................................................... (Pg. 62) 

G. Set Public Meeting; Sketch Plan Mill Run - Common Open Space Major 

Subdivision (UDO 2015-06-07) ............................................................ (Pg. 63-94) 

H.  Stepping Up Resolution No. 2015-08-01............................................. (Pg. 95-115) 

I. Proposed Amendment to Parks & Recreation and Camden County Schools 

Memorandum of Understanding ........................................................ (Pg. 116-126) 

 

ITEM 8. Commissioner's Report (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report (For discussion and possible action) 

 

Recess Commissioner's Meeting 
 

 

SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Public Comments 

3. Consideration of Agenda 

4. New Business (For Discussion and Possible Approval) 

A. Monthly Update to the Board   .......................................................... (Pg. 127-130) 

5. Other Matters (For Discussion and possible action.) 

6. Adjourn 
 

 

Reconvene Commissioner’s Meeting 

 

ITEM 10. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies   ......................... (Pg. 131-134) 

 

A. Library Monthly Report - July .................................................................. (Pg. 132) 

B. Library Annual Report – FY 14-15 .......................................................... (Pg. 133) 

C. Industrial Commission   ............................................................................ (Pg. 134) 

 

ITEM 11. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 12. Adjourn 

Page 3 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   3.A 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3rd, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (3 Pages) 

Submitted By: NC Forest Services 
 

ITEM TITLE:   North Carolina Forest Service – 

Steve Sutton   
 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Camden County Ranger Steve Sutton come to the Board to present highlights of the North 

Carolina Forest Service's annual accomplishments for Camden County in fiscal year July 

2014 – June 2015. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Information only 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 4 of 134



NORTH CAROLINA FOREST SERVICE

ANNUAL REPORT

TO

CAMDEN COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS

FISCAL YEAR

2014 - 2015

PREPARED BY:

CAMDEN COUNTY RANGER

STEVE SUTTON

Page 5 of 134



North Carolina Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services
N.C. Forest Service

Steven W. Troxler \^^p--^V Scott Bissette
Commissioner ^Qm&ir Assistant Commissioner

wo years of'Protecting, Managing &PromotingWortft Carofina'sforests

July 8, 2015

Dear Camden County Commissioners and County Manager Mike Renshaw:

This letter highlights theNorth Carolina Forest Service's annual accomplishments for Camden County in fiscal year July
2014 - June2015. The NCFS is responsible for the protection and development of all private and state woodlands in the
county per general statues. Camden County's woodland area consists of 56,300 acres as listed in the 2002 Forest
Statistics for North Carolina survey. At this time, I would like to take theopportunity to explain our program areas and
the accomplishments we made this past year.

Fire Control

In 2014, we had an average year in fire control in which we responded to 22 fire calls resulting in 14 acres burned. The
major cause of wildfires was debris burning. We had 754 Burning Permits written by local agents and acquired by
landowners online, 6 warning tickets and 3 false alarm calls. Currently, in 2015 we have responded to 4 fire calls and 6
false alarms. We have 3 Volunteer Fire Departments, which continue to be a tremendous asset to us in wildfire
suppression. Theirquick initial attackwith us minimizes fire damage and keeps fires small. I continueto visit each
department and am working with them on inter-agency policies and wildland fire training.

Forest Management

The NC Legislature passed a law in 2014 that requires the NC Forest Service to charge a fee for the creation of certain
woodland management plans for forest landowners which began on July 1, 2014. This past year, I prepared 8
management plans / assists for Camden landowners consisting of 443 acres. These plans help landowners meet financial
and personal objectives for their timberiand. These plansaddress timber resources, wildlife, aesthetics, waterquality, soil
protection, and/or recreation opportunities. Using information in their management plans, Camden landowners replanted
730 acres of harvested woodland, with site preparing 324 of those acres and flat planting the rest. Release sprays were
done on 336 acres to help establish pines that were planted last year and 14acres were burned by us for silvicultural
purposes. We are also responsible for conducting survival checks of last year planting projects, land measurement of all
projects funded with state funds usingglobal positioning system instruments and collecting seed for our nursery.

Water Quality Protection

We are also committed to randomly check on forestry logging operations. All forestry activities must adhere to Forest
Practice Guidelines and Best Management Practices. These laws and regulations protect water quality and enable us to
utilize forest resources in a sustainable manner. We conducted 21 inspectionson loggers for 371 acres of forest
harvesting activities in the county.

1616 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1600

Phone: (919) 857-4801 • FAX: (919) 857-4802 • www.ncforestservice.gov
An Equal Opportunity Employer

Page 6 of 134



Information and Education

These programs are a vitalpartof ourorganization to educate the public in forestry andthe prevention of wildfires. We
conducted 56programs ontheenvironment, tree identification, forest stewardship, andfire prevention. These programs
are given to manygroups in the county includingarea schools, Future Fanners of America,4-H, Scouts and others. Our
Smokey Bearprogram continues to be verypopular at Grandy Primary school during FirePrevention Week. Wepassed
out fire prevention material to 531 Pre-Kthrough Third grade students.

Urban Assistance and Pest Control

We provideCamdencitizenswith advice and support on shade trees, yard trees, windbreaks, and insect disease control.
Urban assistance willcontinue to be a priority as the population increases andmore land is developed. In an effort to
protecturban and forested areas,eachyear we conduct aerialand ground surveys for forestpestoutbreaks. Wedid not
find any significant insect activity this past year. We continually work with cooperative agencies, including the North
Carolina Department of Agriculture to monitor forest pest movements. They continue to work theSlow theSpread
Project to reduce the gypsy moth population.

Other Services

We are also involved in overall emergency response in Camden County, the State ofNorth Carolina, and the Southeast
Compact. We stand ready fornatural disaster recovery efforts such as hurricanes, floods, tornadoes, andicestorms. My
Assistant Ranger FrankBlankenship was dispatched to fight fire in the stateof Washington lastAugustfor two weeks.

Summary

We had an averageyear in most ofour programareas and appreciatethe support of this board ofcommissioners and our
cooperators in helping us achieve this success. If you need any assistanceor have any questions, please feel free to contact
me at 336-4332.

Sincerely,

Steve Sutton

Camden County Ranger

Page 7 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   3.B 

 

 Presentations 

 

Meeting Date:    

Attachments:   1 ( 2 Pages) 

Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Camden County OpenBudget 

Presentation 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

In an effort to encourage greater public participation and enhance public 

knowledge and understanding concerning the County’s annual budget, the 

County Manager and Finance Office has been working with the company 

Socrata to develop a Web-based application that will allow our residents and 

other stakeholders’ easy access to annual budget expense and revenue data. 

 

With the launching of Camden County OpenBudget, customers will now be 

able to view updated budget information throughout the year, tracking 

county expenses and revenues across all departments.  This Web-based 

portal represents a vast improvement over the county’s past practice of 

simply posting static financial documents on its Website.  The Socrata 

OpenBudget application allows for an “open window” into the county’s 

operating budget as well as its programmed Capital Improvement Projects in 

FY 2015-2016. 

 

Customers may view this new portal from the “Government” tab on the 

county Web site homepage as well as from a link on the “Finance Office” 

page listed under “Departments.” 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Presented as information only.  No formal Board action is required. 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 8 of 134



 
 

Press Release 
 

Camden County, in Collaboration with Corporate Partner Socrata, Announces the Launching of 
Its Easy-to-Use Suite of Financial Transparency Apps to Drive Greater Government 

Accountability and Transparency  
 

 Socrata, the Global Leader in Cloud Technology Solutions for Open Data and Data-Driven 
Government Now Has More Than 200 of the Most Innovative, Top-Tier Public-Sector 
Customers Around the World Deploying Its Open Data, Performance Management and 
Financial Transparency Technology Solutions 

 
 Camden County’s Decision to Embrace Socrata Reinforces the Fact That Open Data 

Adoption and Usage Is Exploding at All Levels of Government Globally; 80% in a Recent 
Survey* Say Their Open Data Spending Will Be Consistent or Increase   

 
 
Seattle – August 3, 2015 – Socrata (www.socrata.com), the world leader in cloud solutions for 
open data and data-driven government, today announced that Camden County, North Carolina 
will implement SOCRATA OPEN BUDGET, a suite of breakthrough open data financial 
transparency apps for government.  SOCRATA OPEN BUDGET is designed for quick deployment 
and citizen empowerment. 
 
“Encouraging greater citizen participation and enhancing public understanding of the local 
budget and government finances is of paramount importance to the Camden County Board of 
Commissioners.  Through the use of SOCRATA OPEN BUDGET, Camden County citizens and 
stakeholders will now have access to updated monthly expenditure and revenue data presented 
in an easily accessible, customer-centric format.”  Michael Renshaw, Camden County Manager. 
 
With Socrata’s financial transparency suite of applications, governments large and small are now 
able, for the first time ever, to publish budget and spending data quickly, economically, and in a 
consumer-friendly way. Rather than wading through hundreds of pages of scanned documents 
of legal and financial information, citizens and staff see budget and spending data in vivid color. 
The charts, graphs, and images are attractive, navigable, and easy to understand. 
 
The new Camden County OpenBudget portal may be accessed from the Camden County Web 
site homepage (http://www.camdencountync.gov) by clicking the link under either the 
“Government” tab or “Departments/Finance” navigation tabs. 
 

Page 9 of 134

http://www.camdencountync.gov/


ABOUT SOCRATA 

Socrata is the world leader in cloud solutions for open data and data-driven governments. Its 
innovative customers include the cities of New York, Chicago, San Francisco, Los Angeles, 
Melbourne and Eindhoven; the states of New York, Illinois and Texas; US Health and Human 
Services; Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services; the UN, the European Commission, and the 
World Bank. Socrata’s solutions – including the recently launched Open Data Network™ which 
unleashes the full potential of government data to help drive connected communities around 
the world – assist government leaders in improving transparency, modernizing citizen access to 
information and bringing data into every decision, all with unprecedented speed and cost 
savings. Delivered as turnkey services, Socrata’s technologies unlock data trapped in enterprise 
silos, mobilize and transform it into useful information that everyone can easily access, visualize, 
share and reuse. To learn more about Socrata, visit www.socrata.com. 

 
 
Contact  
Bill Glenn 
VP, Marketing 
Socrata 
bill.glenn@socrata.com 
(206) 465-3228 
 
 
* Socrata’s 2014 Open Data Benchmark Report 
 
 

Page 10 of 134

http://www.socrata.com/
mailto:bill.glenn@socrata.com
http://www.socrata.com/2014-open-data-benchmark-report/


 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   3.C 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3rd, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (3 Pages) 

Submitted By: County Manager, Mike Renshaw 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Camden County Sheriff’s Range   
 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

County Attorney John Morrison will give a brief update to matters concerning a potential 

Camden County Sheriff’s Range. 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Information only 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 11 of 134



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          
 
 
 

Item Number: 4.A 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

     

Meeting Date:   August 3, 2015 

Attachments:   Findings/Planning Board Recommendation  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Old Business - Ordinance No. 2015-06-03 
- Proposed amendments to Chapter 151 (Unified 
Development Ordinance) of the Camden County 
Code Ordinances 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
Proposed amendments to additional Specific Standards (Article 151.347) 
for Solar Farms and amendments to Floodplain Management language 
(Article 151.380 thru 151.387) 
 
Planning Board met on June 17, 2015 and after presentation from staff and 
discussion, Ordinance 2015-06-03 was approved on a 6-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing held July 6, 2015 – Board requested staff provide language 
on proof of continued operation of the facility.  Paragraph (V) (7) added to 
ordinance with proposed language.    
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Consideration. 

 

 

  

  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

T. White        ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

T. White         ____ 
C. Riggs       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

Page 12 of 134



 1 

Ordinance No. 2015-06-03 2 
 3 

An Ordinance 4 
Amending the Camden County 5 

Code of Ordinances 6 
   7 

Camden County, North Carolina 8 
 9 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 10 
follows: 11 

 12 
Article I: Purpose 13 
 14 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of 15 
Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County 16 
Commissioners on December 15, 1997, and subsequently amended and as otherwise 17 
incorporated into the Camden County Code. 18 
  19 

Article II. Construction 20 
 21 

For purposes of this Ordinance, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as 22 
additions to existing Ordinance language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be 23 
considered deletions to existing language.  New language of proposed  ordinance shall be 24 
shown in italics (italics) and underlined. 25 
 26 

Article III.  Amend Chapter 151 as amended of the Camden County Code  27 
                         which shall read as follows: 28 
 29 
  CHAPTER 151:  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 30 
 31 
§ 151.347 SPECIFIC STANDARDS. 32 
 33 
(V) The following standards shall apply to all solar farms located in Camden County: 34 

 35 
  (1) The minimum lot size for all solar farms shall be five acres. 36 
 37 

  (2) All structures shall meet the minimum setback for the zoning in which located. 38 
 39 
  (3) There shall be 50 foot buffer from routine view from public rights of way or 40 
adjacent residentially zoned property. 41 

 42 
  (4) Solar power electric generation structures shall not exceed a height of 25 feet. 43 
 44 
  (5) The solar farm shall conform to the NAICS 22119 description of a ground mounted 45 
solar powered energy system. 46 
 47 

Page 13 of 134



            (6)  The solar farm shall have 12 months to complete decommissioning of the solar 48 

facility if no electricity is generated for a continuous period of 12 months.  For purposes of this 49 
section, this 12-month period shall not include delay resulting from force majeure. 50 
 51 
            (7) The County shall periodically request proof of the continuous operation of the solar 52 
farm from the applicant/owner.  The nature of required evidence shall be determined as a 53 
condition of the Special Use Permit. 54 
 55 
            (8)  Decommissioning shall include removal of solar panels, buildings, cabling, electrical 56 
components, roads, and any other associated facilities down to 36 inches below grade. 57 
 58 
            (9)  Applicant shall provide prior to approval of building permits, an irrevocable letter of 59 
credit in favor of the county in an amount equal to the estimated removal cost of the solar 60 

facility, less the salvage value of the equipment, which shall be issued by a federally chartered 61 
bank with a branch office in northeastern North Carolina at which the letter of credit may be 62 
drawn and paid in full in immediately available funds in the event the solar facility owner fails to 63 
decommission the solar facility pursuant to the requirements of this section.  The estimated cost 64 
of removal shall be updated every five (5) years from date of approval for solar farm. 65 
 66 
            (10)  Disturbed earth shall be graded and re-seeded, unless the landowner requests in 67 
writing that the access roads or other land surface areas not be restored. 68 
 69 
  (6 11) Solar farms located within FEMA’s 100 year flood shall elevate all electrical 70 
connections one foot above the base flood elevation (BFE). 71 
 72 

  (7 12) All collectors shall be surrounded by a lockable minimum height six foot 73 
fence. 74 

 75 
  76 
§ 151.380 FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION. 77 
 78 

§ 151.382 GENERAL PROVISIONS. 79 
 80 

 (A) Lands to which this subchapter applies.  This subchapter shall apply to all special flood 81 
hazard areas within the county. 82 
 83 
 (B) Basis for establishing the special flood hazard areas.  The special flood hazard areas 84 

are those identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) or produced under 85 
the Cooperating Technical State (CTS) agreement between the State of North Carolina and 86 
FEMA in its Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM) or Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and its 87 

accompanying flood maps such as the Flood Insurance Rate Map(s) (FIRM) and/or the Flood 88 
Boundary Floodway Map(s) (FBFM), for Camden County dated October 5, 2004, which, with 89 
accompanying supporting data, and any revision thereto, including letters of map amendment or 90 
revision, are adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this subchapter.  The special flood 91 
hazard areas also include those defined through standard engineering analysis for private 92 
developments or by governmental agencies, but which have not yet been incorporated in the 93 

Page 14 of 134



FIRM.  This includes, but is not limited to: 94 

 95 
  (1) Detailed flood data generated as a requirement of § 151.383 of this subchapter; 96 
 97 
  (2) Preliminary FIRMs where more stringent than the effective FIRM; or  98 
 99 
  (3) Post-disaster flood recovery maps. 100 
 101 
 (C) Establishment of Floodplain Development Permit.  A Floodplain Development Permit 102 
shall be required in conformance with the provisions of this subchapter prior to the 103 
commencement of any development activities within special flood hazard areas as determined in 104 
§ 151.382(B). 105 
  106 

 107 

§ 151.384 GENERAL STANDARDS. 108 
 109 
 (B) Specific standards.  In all Special Flood Hazard Areas where Base Flood Elevation 110 
(BFE) data has been provided, as set forth in § 151.382(B), or § 151.383, the following 111 
provisions are required: 112 
 113 
  (1) Residential construction.  New construction or substantial improvement of any 114 
residential structure (including manufactured homes) shall have the reference level, including 115 
basement, elevated no lower than the regulatory flood protection elevation, as defined in § 116 
151.600, Definitions. 117 
 118 

  (2) Non-residential construction.  New construction or substantial improvement of any 119 
commercial, or industrial, or other non-residential structure shall have the reference level, 120 
including basement, elevated no lower than the regulatory flood protection elevation.  Structures 121 
located in A and AE Zones may be floodproofed to the regulatory flood protection elevation in 122 
lieu of elevation provided that all areas of the structure below the required flood protection 123 
elevation are watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, using 124 
structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and 125 
the effect of buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the 126 

standards of this subsection are satisfied.  Such certification shall be provided to the official as 127 
set forth in § 151.383(B)(3). 128 
 129 
  (3) Manufactured homes. 130 

 131 
   (a) New or replacement manufactured homes shall be elevated so that the 132 
reference level of the manufactured home is no lower than the regulatory flood protection 133 

elevation, as defined in § 151.600, Definitions. 134 
 135 
   (b) Manufactured homes shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored 136 
foundation to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement in accordance with the State of 137 
North Carolina Regulations for Manufactured/Mobile Homes, 1995 Edition, and any revision 138 
thereto adopted by the Commissioner of Insurance pursuant to G.S. § 143-143.15 or a certified 139 

Page 15 of 134



engineered foundation. Additionally, when the elevation would be met by an elevation of the 140 

chassis 36 inches or less above the grade at the site, the chassis shall be supported by reinforced 141 
piers or other foundation elements of at least equivalent strength. When the elevation of the 142 
chassis is above 36 inches in height, an engineering certification is required. 143 
 144 
   (c) All foundation enclosures or skirting shall be in accordance with § 145 
151.383(B)(4). 146 
 147 
   (d) An evacuation plan must be developed for evacuation of all residents of all 148 
new, substantially improved or substantially damaged manufactured home parks or subdivisions 149 
located within flood prone areas. This plan shall be filed with and approved by the Floodplain 150 
Administrator and the local emergency management coordinator. 151 
 152 

  (4) Elevated buildings.  Enclosed areas, of new construction or substantially improved 153 
structures, which are below the regulatory flood protection. 154 
 155 
   (a) Shall not be designed or used for human habitation, but shall only be designed 156 
and used for parking of vehicles, building access, or limited storage of maintenance equipment 157 
used in connection with the premises.  Access to the enclosed area shall be the minimum 158 
necessary to allow for parking of vehicles (garage door) or limited storage of maintenance 159 
equipment (standard exterior door), or entry to the living area (stairway or elevator). The interior 160 
portion of such enclosed area shall not be partitioned or finished into separate rooms, except to 161 
enclose storage areas; 162 
 163 
   (b) Shall be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials below the regulatory 164 

flood protection elevation; 165 
 166 
   (c) Shall include measures to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on 167 
exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters.  To meet this requirement, the 168 
foundation must either be certified by a professional engineer or architect or meet the following 169 
minimum design criteria: 170 
 171 
    1. Provide a minimum of two openings on different sides of each enclosed 172 

area subject to flooding; 173 
 174 
    2. The total net area of all openings must be at least one square inch for each 175 
square foot of each enclosed area subject to flooding; 176 

 177 
    3. If a building has more than one enclosed area, each area must have 178 
openings on exterior walls to allow floodwater to enter directly; 179 

 180 
    4. The bottom of all required openings shall be no higher than one foot above 181 
the adjacent grade; 182 
 183 
    5. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, or other opening 184 
coverings or devices, provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both directions. 185 

Page 16 of 134



 186 

    6. Foundation enclosures: 187 
 188 
     a. Made of vinyl or other flexible skirting are not considered an 189 
enclosure for regulatory purposes, and, therefore, does not require openings. 190 
 191 
     b. Made of masonry or wood underpinning, regardless of structural 192 
status, are considered an enclosure and therefore require openings as outlined above. 193 
 194 
  (5) Additions/improvements. 195 
 196 
   (a) Additions and/or improvements to pre-FIRM structures whereas the addition 197 
and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure: 198 

 199 
    1. Are not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements 200 
must be designed to minimize flood damages and must not be any more non-conforming than the 201 
existing structure. 202 
 203 
    2. Are a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition 204 
and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction. 205 
 206 
   (b) Additions to post-FIRM structures with no modifications to the existing 207 
structure shall require only the addition to comply with the standards for new construction. 208 
 209 
   (c) Additions and/or improvements to post-FIRM structures whereas the addition 210 

and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure: 211 
 212 
    1. Are not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements only 213 
must comply with the standards for new construction. 214 
 215 
    2. Are a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition 216 
and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction. 217 
 218 

   (d) Where a fire wall or independent perimeter load-bearing wall is provided 219 
between the addition and the existing building, the addition(s) shall be considered a separate 220 
building and only the addition must comply with the standards for new construction. 221 
 222 

  (6) Recreational vehicles.  Recreational vehicles placed on sites within a Special Flood 223 
Hazard Area shall either: 224 
 225 

   (a) Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and ready 226 
for highway use (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking 227 
system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and has no permanently 228 
attached additions); or 229 
 230 
   (b) Meet all the requirements for new construction, including anchoring and 231 

Page 17 of 134



elevation requirements of § 151.383(B) and § 151.384(A) and (B)(3). 232 

 233 
  (7) Temporary non-residential structures.  Prior to the issuance of a floodplain 234 
development permit for a temporary structure, applicants must submit to the Floodplain 235 
Administrator a plan for the removal of such structure(s) in the event of a hurricane, flash flood 236 
or other type of flood warning notification.  The following information shall be submitted in 237 
writing to the Floodplain Administrator for review and written approval: 238 
 239 
   (a) A specified time period for which the temporary use will be permitted. Time 240 
specified should be minimal with total time on site not to exceed one year; 241 
 242 
   (b) The name, address, and phone number of the individual responsible for the 243 
removal of the temporary structure; 244 

 245 
   (c) The time frame prior to the event at which a structure will be removed (i. e. 246 
minimum of 72 hours before landfall of a hurricane or immediately upon flood warning 247 
notification); 248 
 249 
   (d) A copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with a trucking company to 250 
insure the availability of removal equipment when needed; and 251 
 252 
   (e) Designation, accompanied by documentation of a location outside the Special 253 
Flood Hazard Area, to which the temporary structure will be moved. 254 
 255 
  (8) Accessory structures.  When accessory structures (sheds, detached garages, etc.) are 256 

to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met: 257 
 258 
   (a) Accessory structures shall not be used for human habitation (including work, 259 
sleeping, living, cooking or restroom areas); 260 
 261 
   (b) Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage potential; 262 

 263 
   (c) Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as 264 

to offer the minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters; 265 
 266 
   (d) Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in accordance with this 267 
subchapter or by bolting the building to a concrete slab or by over the top ties.  When bolting to a 268 

concrete slab, one-half inch bolts six feet on center with a minimum of two per side shall be 269 
required.  If over the top ties are used a minimum of two ties with a force adequate to secure the 270 
building is required; and 271 

 272 
   (e) All service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment shall be installed 273 
in accordance with § 151.384(A)(4); and 274 
 275 
   (f) Openings to relieve hydrostatic pressure during a flood shall be provided 276 
below regulatory flood protection elevation in conformance with § 151.384(B)(4)(a). 277 

Page 18 of 134



 278 

   (g) An accessory structure with a footprint less than 150  1000  square feet that 279 
satisfies the criteria outlined above.  Structures less than 150 square feet that satisfy the criteria 280 
above does not require an elevation or floodproofing certificate.  Elevation or floodproofing 281 
certifications are required for all other accessory structures in accordance with §151.383(B)(3). 282 
 283 
 284 

 Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this   of               , 2015. 285 

 286 
 287 
 288 
       County of Camden 289 

 290 
       _____________________________ 291 
       P. Michael McLain, Chairman 292 
       Board of Commissioners 293 
ATTEST: 294 
 295 
____________________________ 296 
Angie Wooten 297 
Acting Clerk to the Board 298 
 299 

Page 19 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.A 

 

 New Business 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3
rd

, 2015 

Attachments:   (7 Pages) 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson  

 Tax Administrator,  
 

ITEM TITLE:   Monthly Tax Report  
 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Monthly Tax Report for June 2015 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 Review & Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 20 of 134



Page 21 of 134



Page 22 of 134



Page 23 of 134



Page 24 of 134



Page 25 of 134



Page 26 of 134



Page 27 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.B 

 

 New Business 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3
rd

, 2015 

Attachments:   (3 Pages) 

Submitted By: Shana Trafton,  

 Senior Center Director 
 

 

ITEM TITLE:   Senior Center 

Participant Code of Conduct Policy 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
New Code of Conduct for the Camden Senior Center that new and current participants 

will be given to sign. This will be one of a few documents included in the Camden Senior 

Center welcome packets.   

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Review & Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 28 of 134



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
Camden  County Senior Center 

PO Box 190 
117 North NC 343 

Camden, NC 27921  
Phone: (252)335-2569  Fax: (252) 331-5621 

 

Application Packet 
 
Name: _______________________________________  Male/ Female  DOB: _______________ 

Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Phone #: ____________________________________ Email: ____________________________ 

Emergency Contact: Name: __________________________ Phone #: _____________________ 

 
Participant Code of Conduct 
The Camden County Senior Center is committed to serving Camden residents 55 years and 
older. The Senior Center staff hopes you find the Center to be a friendly place to visit where you 
can benefit from a variety of programs and outreach services offered. This Participant Code of 
Conduct is created to ensure a safe and enjoyable environment for all who utilize the center 
facitilties.  
 
PARTICIPANTS MUST EXHIBIT THE FOLLOWING CONDUCT: 

 Be considerate and treat others with kindness, courtesy and respect. 

 Be calm, patient and refrain from using abusive, obscene, threatening, harassing, 
insulting or suggestive language. 

 Not engage in (or threaten) physical violence. 

 Keep facilities clean by cleaning up after you eat and throwing away all trash. 

 Be able to care for themselves while partaking in Center activites. Individuals need 

assistance (memory impairment, incontinence, wheelchair bound, etc.) may 

conditionally participate in Center activites with the aid of a self provided care 

attendant.  

 Maintain personal cleanliness and hygiene. 

 Be properly clothed at all times: shirt/top, pants/skirts, shoes/sandals.  If using fitness 

room or class must have proper athletic attire and shoes. 

 Do not consume or be under the influence of any alcoholic beverages and/or illegal 

drugs. 

 NO CONCEALED WEAPONS are permitted in the Center.  

 No smoking inside the Center. 

Page 29 of 134



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 Do not leave or store personal possessions at the Camden County Senior Center. 

 Properly utilize public restroom. If an accident occurs please let Center staff know.  

 Soliciting, canvassing, and peddling will not be tolerated at the Center or the 

surrounding parking lot.   

 Must have Volunteer Application on file to assist staff with any tasks relating to the 

Senior Center. 

 Adhere to all posted rules and signs. 

 

With the understanding that all participants utilizing the center will be required to abide by the 

Center’s rules, laws, and processes, the Director or staff will use the following guidelines when 

addressing Code of Conduct violations.  

Discipline Violations 

1. FIRST OFFENSE- Meet with participant to discuss conduct policy, innappropiate 

behavior, and the violation that occurred. Staff will keep a record of the incident. Advise 

the violator inappropiate behavior may result in suspension from all programs and 

activites at the Camden County Senior Center and/or Center offsite programs and 

activites.  

2. SECOND OFFENSE- Meet with particpant to discuss violation. Add this incident to 

partcipant’s record.  At the Director’s discretion participant can be suspended for one 

week from all programs and activities at the Camden County Senior Center and/or 

Center offsite programs and activities. 

3. THIRD OFFENSE- Meet with participant to discuss violation. Staff will give written notice 

informing of one month suspension from all programs and activites at the Camden 

County Senior Center and/or Center offsite programs and activites.  Participant must 

make appointment with the SAB Senior Advisory Board to be intereviewed prior to 

being allowed reentry to the Center.  

4. INCIDENT OF IMMINENT DANGER- Staff will handle imminent danger to persons or 

property as a police matter. When appropiate call 911 to protect the safety of 

participants and staff at the center.  Participants will be indefinetly suspended from all 

programs and activites at the Camden Senior Center and/or Center offsite programs and 

activities.  Term suspension will be determined by the Center Director, County Manager 

or designated department staff representatives.  

 

Page 30 of 134



 

3 | P a g e  
 

The Camden Senior Center reserves the right to remove patrons from facilities, programs and 

services via suspension periods for any offense (first, second, third, etc) determined by the 

Center Director, County Manager, or designated staff representatives.   

1. I have carefully reveiwed the Release and voluntarily signed it.  

2. I agree to allow my picture to be used for publication. 

3. I have been informed of the strenuous nature of the exercise programs, and 

that there will not be an instructor in the exercise room.  

4. I have either consulted my physician, who has given his/her opinion that 

my physical condition allows my participation without adverse 

consequences, or I have, against advice, elected not to contact my 

physician.  

5. I the undersigned participant, hereby indemnify and hold harmless the 

Camden County Senior Center, the County of Camden here and after 

referred to as a host agency their agents, employees, representatives, and 

assigns from any claims resulting in injury or physical illness arising from 

the use of the equipment in the exercise room, or fitness classes. 

Thank you for making the Camden County Senior Center safe and enjoyable! 

 

By signing below I agree that I have read, understand and will abide by the                          

Camden County Senior Center Policies. 

 

Signature:_________________________________________ Date:_______________________ 

 

Page 31 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.A 

 

BOARD APPOINTMENTS 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3rd, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (1 Pages) 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 

ITEM TITLE:   EARL  
 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

At last night’s Camden Library Board of Trustees meeting, members voted to recommend 

Vicky Hagemeister as a Camden representative on the East Albemarle Regional Library Board 

of Trustees. While Vicky was not able to attend the meeting, she had agreed via email to accept 

the position if appointed. Vicky will be replacing Wendy McPherson on the EARL board. 

 

Krystal Lancaster 

Camden County Librarian 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Appoint Vicky Hagemeister as a Camden representative on the East Albemarle Regional 

Library Board to serve a four year term. 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 32 of 134



EARL BOARD MEMBERSHIP 

 

There shall be twelve (12) members of the Board of Trustees providing equitable representation 

of each participating governmental unit. 

 

A. Camden County: three (3) members appointed by the Camden County Board of 

Commissioners. 

B. Currituck County: three (3) members appointed by the Currituck County Board of 

Commissioners. 

C. Dare County: three (3) members appointed by the Dare County Board of 

Commissioners. 

D. Pasquotank County:  three (3) members appointed by the Pasquotank County Board of 

Commissioners. 

E. Members shall be appointed from the membership of the local library advisory boards 

according to bylaws and policies approved by each County Board of Commissioners for 

that library. Members shall be serving as members of the local advisory boards at the 

time of their appointment.  

F. Members shall serve no more than two consecutive terms with no single term longer 

than four years. Trustees may continue to serve out their appointed term even if their 

membership on the local board has ended; with the expectation they will continue to 

attend local library board meetings to the best of their ability.   

G. Vacancies on the Board shall be filled with appointments by the appropriate governing 

body to serve the remainder of the unexpired term of the member creating the vacancy.  

H. Any member missing three (3) consecutive Board meetings shall be considered to have 

resigned, and the County Commissioners shall appoint a new member to serve the 

remainder of the unexpired term upon notification by the Chairman of the Regional 

Library Board of Trustees. 

I. Trustees shall be paid a stipend of $40.00 for each regional library board meeting they 

attend.   

 

Page 33 of 134



Application for Citizen Service - Volunteer Form

Ifyou are a citizenof Camden Countyand would like to serve on one of the County's boards or
commissions, please complete this application and return it to the County Manager's Office,
330 East HWY158, mail to P.O. Box 190, Camden, North Carolina 27921 or e-mail

mrenshaw@camdencountvnc.gov.

Name. Vl'cfo^V^- H^-g Wv€\S+e
•̂«juaar

Mailing Address US Sco-t-UftA RcA

Township you live in: CoU«+HoUSe
TeleohorfethomeV) 3 3 I ~ -£ 02-fc? (business),

Emaiiaddress VH*? *V*ie\ S+C (̂g mcKsj,C^>M
Are you a registered voter? \^&*s No

Have you ever been convicted ofa felony? Yes ( No

Please identify any talent, interest, skill, experience or educational preparation which mightbe helpful to
a board or commission: * n tn 1 . ^ a/) /i

1$ oM^Mn&)M
0

Board or Commissions upon which you are interested in serving: (List on opposite side)

As a member of a Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend at least 75% of the meetings.

Please note the by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This
application is a notification of your interest to serve on a Board or Commission to be considered by the
Board of Commissioners when a vacancy occurs. Thanks for your interest in Camden County

Government. |

Signature _

Created 8/11/2009

TtfoyiAJ^^^ Date y/<fi/Zg

Page 34 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.A 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Meeting Date:   August 3
rd

, 2015  

Attachments:   2  

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
  

 

ITEM TITLE:   Draft Meeting Minutes 
  

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 April 6
th

, 2015 – BOC Meeting Minutes 

April 20
th, 

2015 – BOC Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

For Review and Possible Approval 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 35 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 1 

Regular Meeting  2 

April 6th, 2015 3 

6:30 P.M. - Closed Session 4 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 5 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 6 

Camden, North Carolina 7 

 8 

MINUTES 9 

 10 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on April 11 

6th, 2015 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  The following 12 

Commissioners were present: 13 

 14 

Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 15 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White 16 

 17 

Also attending was the County Manager Michael Renshaw, County Attorney Lauren 18 

Womble and Clerk to the Board Angela Wooten.  Present for purposes of making a 19 

presentation(s) or providing supporting information for agenda items were the following 20 

persons:  Public Works Director David Credle, Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson, Finance 21 

Officer Stephanie Humphries, and JCPC Director CJ Williams. 22 

 23 

Closed Session, 6:30 P.M. - Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) – Personnel 24 

 25 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to go into closed session at 6:42 PM.  The 26 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners 27 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 28 

Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 29 

 30 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to come out of closed session at 6:58 PM.  The 31 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners’ 32 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 33 

Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 34 

 35 

Regular Session, 7:00 P.M. 36 

 37 

Chairman McLain called to order the April 6th, 2015 meeting of the Camden County 38 

Board of Commissioners at 7:02 PM. 39 

 40 

 41 

 42 

 43 

Page 36 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 44 

 45 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs gave the invocation and led those present in the Pledge of 46 

Allegiance. 47 

 48 

 49 

Public Comments 50 

 51 

None 52 

 53 

 54 

Consideration of Agenda  55 

 56 

Chairman McLain asked if there were any changes to the agenda. The County Manager 57 

Mike Renshaw requested item 6.A - Draft Meeting Minutes - Remove February 2nd, 2015 58 

be removed from the consent agenda.  59 

 60 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.  The 61 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners 62 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 63 

Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 64 

 65 

 66 

Presentations 67 

 68 
Item 3.A - ECSU Chancellor - Stacey Franklin Jones 69 

 70 
Phases 71 

 Most affordable 72 

 Regional Partnership 73 

 Science University 74 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs states he is very thankful for the positive impact the 75 

university has on the area and he thanks Chancellor for her presentation. 76 

 77 

 78 

 79 

Public Hearings 80 

 81 

None 82 

 83 

 84 

Page 37 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 85 

Old Business 86 

 87 

None 88 

 89 

 90 

New Business 91 

 92 

Item 4.A - Waste Industries Contract Amendment 93 

 94 

The current contract with Waste Industries will expire on June 30th, 2015. This 95 

amendment reflects a not-to-exceed 2.5% Cost of Living increase in subsequent years of 96 

this agreement. 97 

 98 

Waste Industries had agreed to and will implement the following: 99 

 100 

 Begin adding glass to co-mingled recyclables container and eliminate the extra 101 

container at each site. County will reap benefit of S3.00 per ton from this 102 

additional material being collected co-mingled and sites will benefit from space 103 

to place overflow box if needed. Please note that discussion included the volatility 104 

of glass recycling. 105 

 106 

 On March 1, 2015, Waste Industries will begin opening the Camden Site on 107 

Sundays from 1:00 to 6:00pm. This should improve the traffic flow on Saturdays. 108 

Currently, all other sites are open on Sundays. Waste Industries will provide this 109 

trial at no additional cost for three months. At the end of that time frame, County 110 

will indicate whether or not the site shall be closed on Thursdays. Currently, the 111 

Camden site is open on Tuesdays and Thursdays while the other sites are closed 112 

on Tuesdays and Thursdays. It was agreed that any difference in hours would be 113 

calculated at hourly cost of worker including benefits or $10 per hour. 114 

 115 

Page 38 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 
 116 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to accept the contract as presented.  The 117 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners 118 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 119 

Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 120 

 121 

Item 4.B - JCPC Grant Approval FY15/16 122 

 123 

CJ Williams thanks the board for their support and keeping the program running.  He 124 

explains the 4 components involved with this Grant.   125 

 126 

Program Components- 127 

 Teen Court – for 1st time misdemeanor  128 

 Community Service – Juvenile Court Councilor will refer Youth to the JCPC  129 

 Crown Bears – After School Program  130 

 Camp Blue – Summer Camp  131 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the grant request as presented 132 

and authorize staff to submit on behalf of the county. The motion passed 5-0 with 133 

Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton 134 

Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; 135 

and no Commissioner not voting. 136 

Page 39 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 137 

Item 4.C - Monthly Tax Report 138 

 139 

Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson came before the board to present the following 140 

monthly tax report. 141 

 

 

Page 40 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 

 

 

Page 41 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 

 
 142 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the monthly tax report 143 

as presented by the tax administrator.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman 144 

McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton 145 

Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner 146 

absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 147 

 148 

 149 

Item 4.D - Museum Tract Lighting 150 

 151 

After consulting with the Camden Museum Planning Committee and Museum of 152 

the Albemarle staff, the County Manager requested bids for 120V LED track 153 

lighting for the Camden History Museum. Museum lighting specialists with the 154 

Museum of the Albemarle assisted the Camden Museum Planning Committee in 155 

developing specifications for the required track lighting. A total of two project 156 

bids for the associated lighting equipment and hangars were received (included 157 

in the Board packet). Triangle Electrical Associates for Manufacturers submitted 158 

a bid in the amount of $4,263 excluding shipping costs and tax. Rexel has 159 

submitted a bid in the amount of $5,328.75. 160 

 161 

In addition to the purchase of the above required lighting hardware, the County 162 

Page 42 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

Manager also requested bids for the installation of this equipment from licensed 163 

electrical contractors. Two bids for this installation were received. The first 164 

installation bid was submitted by Kight Electric in the amount of $475. The 165 

second bid was submitted by Coker Electric in the amount of $1,200. 166 

 167 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to authorize the county manager to 168 

purchase lights for $4263.00 and further negotiate with Kight Electric to have the 169 

installation for $475.00.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice 170 

Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom 171 

White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no 172 

Commissioner not voting. 173 

 174 

 175 

Board Appointments 176 

 177 

Item 5.A - Senior Advisory Board 178 

 179 

The following four Senior Advisory board members appointments have expired.  180 

All four have volunteered to serve again. 181 

 182 

 EDITH POOLE JENNINGS , RE-APPOINTMENT, 3YRS 183 

 PATRICIA DELANO, RE-APPOINTMENT, 3YRS 184 

 DOROTHY DRAKE, RE-APPOINTMENT, 3YRS 185 

 REED ADAMS, RE-APPOINTMENT, 2YRS 186 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to reappoint the four senior advisory 187 

board members as presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, 188 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and 189 

Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; 190 

and no Commissioner not voting. 191 

 192 

 193 

Consent Agenda 194 

 195 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 196 

amended.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 197 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting 198 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner 199 

not voting. 200 

 201 

Page 43 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 202 

Consent Agenda 203 

 204 

Item 6.A - Draft Minutes 205 

 206 

 January 5th, 2015 207 

 January 20th, 2015 208 

 209 
 210 

Item 6.B - County Audit Contract 211 

 212 

The Finance Officer recommends that the Board of Commissioners award 213 

Thompson, Price, Scott, and Adams with a three (3) year agreement for the 214 

provision of audit services for both the County and Tourism Development 215 

Authority audit in the total amount of $25,300 in Year 1, $25,350 in Year 2, and 216 

$25,400 in Year 3. 217 

 218 
 219 

Item 6.C - School Budget Amendments 220 

 221 

 

Page 44 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 

 
 222 

 223 
 224 

 225 

 226 

 227 

 228 

 229 

 230 

 231 

 232 

 233 

 234 

 235 

 236 

 237 

 238 

 239 

 240 

Page 45 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 241 

Item 6.D - Tax Collection Report 242 

 243 

 
 244 

 245 

 246 

 247 

 248 

 249 

 250 

 251 

 252 

 253 

 254 

 255 

 256 

 257 

Page 46 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 258 

Item 6.E - Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases 259 

 260 

 

 

 
 261 

 262 

 263 

 264 

 265 

 266 

 267 

Page 47 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 268 

Item 6.F - Tax Authorization to Collect (May Renewals) 269 

 270 

 
 271 

 272 

Item 6.G - Volunteer Forms  273 

 274 

Library Board of Trustees 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

Camden Economic Development Commission 

 
 275 

Item 6.H - Resolution in Opposition of Sunday Hunting 276 

 277 

 
 278 

 279 

 280 

 281 

Page 49 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 282 

Item 6.I - Resolution in Support of US 17 Upgrade 283 

 284 

 

 
 285 

 286 

Commissioner’s Report 287 
 288 

 Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall presented the monthly Library report 289 

 Commissioner Garry Meiggs advised that the ARHS director will move forward 290 

looking for solutions to help funding. 291 

  292 

 Dollar General Grand Opening will be Saturday May 9th at 7:30 am 293 

 April 18th Tar Wheel Bike Event 294 

 May 2nd Paddle for the Border 295 

 296 

 297 

 298 

Page 50 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 299 

County Manager’s Report 300 
 301 

County Manager Mike Renshaw had the following items to report: 302 

  Budget Survey is posted on the county website – the public is encouraged 303 

to participate.  304 

 305 

 306 

Information from Board and Staff 307 

 308 

The following items were provided to the Board for their information, and a copy 309 

of these items is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 310 

 311 

A. GOVERNOR’S State Budget Summary 312 

B. Annual Advisory Opinion Newsletter) 313 

C. BizConnect Broadband Pilot Grant Program 314 

D. NCACC Legislative Bulletin – March 6, 2015 315 

E. NCACC Legislative Bulletin - March 13, 2015 316 

F. NCACC Legislative Bulletin - March 20, 2015 317 

G. Register of Deeds Monthly Report – February 318 

H. SPCA February Meeting Minutes 319 

I. New Direction for Workforce System 320 

J. State Tourism Industry 321 

K. Sheriff’s Monthly Report – February 322 

L. US Census Report 323 

M. Fraud Unit Steps Up 324 

N. Finance Monthly Reports 325 

O. North Carolina Secretary of Commerce Statement on SB326 326 

P. Senate unveils plan to convert local sales taxes to state revenue 327 

Q. Monthly Sales Tax Report 328 

R. Library Monthly Report 329 

S. Register of Deeds - check journal report 330 

T. Northeast Economic Developers 331 

 332 

 333 

 334 

 335 

 336 

Page 51 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 6th, 2015 

 337 

Meeting Adjourned 338 

 339 

At 7:53 PM, Chairman McLain asked if there were any other matters to come 340 

before the Board of Commissioners, hearing none, and by acclamation the 341 

meeting was adjourned. 342 

 343 

 344 

   345 

 Chairman Michael McLain 346 

 Camden County Board of Commissioners 347 

ATTEST: 348 

 349 

 350 

  351 

Angela L. Wooten 352 

Clerk to the Board 353 

Page 52 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.B 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3
rd

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Budget & Finance Officers 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Budget Amendments  
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

2015-16-BA001 - One Mill Park 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Review & Approve Budget Amendments  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 53 of 134



                               2015-16-BA001 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General   Fund as follows: 

 

         AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT     INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

  

65399617-439900 Fund Balance Appropriated $  41,074.00 

 

65330617-439710 County Contribution  $115,556.00 

 

656170-574095 Playground        $119,714.00 

 

656170-574302 Site Development  $  36,916.00 

 

 

10399400-439900 Fund Balance Appropriated $115,556.00 

 

106900-519210 One Mill Park Project  $115,556.00 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to increase budget for One Mill Park project 

expenditures in current Fiscal Year. 

 

This will result in a decrease of $0 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 3rd day of August, 2015. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

Page 54 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.C 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3
rd

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Tax Collection Report  
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Tax Collection Report 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 55 of 134



Tax Collection Report
June 2015

Day Amount Amount Name of Account Deposits Internet

1 10,251.97 10,251.97
2 2,725.45 2,725.45
3 61.00 61.00

5,088.30 5,088.30
4 1,100.21 1,100.21
5 6,805.17 6,805.17
8 3,412.97 3,412.971
9 3,427.99 3,427.99!

10 444.24 444.24 j
11 5,175.51 5,175.51
12 3,695.21 3,695.21
15 3,187.71 $0.24 - short 3,187.71
16 5,456.84 5,456.84
17 .00 .00

18 6,921.61 6,921.611
19 5,484.55 5,484.55|
22 5,105.96 $0.02 - Over 5,105.96
23 3,528.25 3,528.25
24 3,360.81 3,360.81
25 186.38 186.38

26 4,904.90 4,904.90
29 1,000.72 1,000.72
30 811.54 811.54

3,353.78 3,353.78
203.97 203.97

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

$85,695.04 $0.00 $84,822.50 $872.54

$85,695.04 $85,695.04

~WB6 Refund

-$0.02 Over

$0.24 Shortage
$0.00 Adjustment

$85,695.26

Submitted IJy:

Approved by:

JQC^^S. Qt/^W^en. Date: *~) - pL- lj£_

Date:

Page 56 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.D 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3
rd

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Tax Refunds, Pickups & Releases 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Tax Refunds, Pickups & Releases 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 57 of 134



NAME

Susan Barry allenburg

Jonnie Mercer Heirs

Vivian Ruth Johnson

REASON

TYPE

NO.

$187.88
Turned in plates

Pick/Up/18006
25225256

$1,346.25
Refund - 5 years double billed

Pick-Up/17907
Multiple bills

$109.08

Wrong code - not military
Pick-Up/17856
V-72897-14

Page 58 of 134



ACS Tax System
7/09/15 14:35:42

REFUNDS OVER $100.00

Refunds to be Issued by Finance Office
CAMDEN COUNTY

Refund$ Remit To:
7 82.13 COMMONWEALTH USA SETTLEMENTS

100 PARK MANOR DR.STE 200
PITTSBURGH PA 15205

269.25 OSCAR AND GAIL BUTTS
119 MERCER DRIVE

CAMDEN NC 27921

269.25 OSCAR AND GAIL BUTTS
119 MERCER DRIVE

CAMDEN NC 27921

269.25 OSCAR AND GAIL BUTTS
119 MERCER DRIVE

CAMDEN NC 27921

26 9.25 OSCAR AND GAIL BUTTS
119 MERCER DRIVE
CAMDEN NC 27921

269.25 OSCAR AND GAIL BUTTS
119 MERCER DRIVE
CAMDEN NC 27921

2,128.38 Total Refunds

Reference: Drawer/Transaction Info:
2013 R 02-8943-01-26-1507.0000 20150430 1 218700
overpayment

2014 R 02-8944-00-88-8574.0000 20150707 99 219277
REFUND PER MR MORRISON/DOUBLEB

2013 R 02-8944-00-88-8574.0000 20150707 99 219278
REFUND PER MR MORRISON/DOUBLEB

2012 R 02-8944-00-88-8574.0000 20150707 99 219279
REFUND PER MR MORRISON/DOUBLEB

2011 R 02-8944-00-88-8574.0000 20150707 99 219280
REFUND PER MR MORRISON/DOUBLEB

2010 R 02-8944-00-88-8574.0000 20150707 99 219281
REFUND PER MR MORRISON/DOUBLEB

Submitted by ^VVggrl -5- Cu^cLua^^ Date

Lisa S. Anderson, Tax Administrator Camden County
C±=3Jl

Approved by Date

P. Michael McLain, Chairman Camden County Board of Commissioners

Page

Page 59 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.E 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3
rd

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Authorization to Collect 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Authorization to Collect – September renewals 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 60 of 134



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CAMDEN

TO: The Tax Administrator of Camden County September Ren. Due 10/15/15 (NEW
SYSTEM)

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set
forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax Administrator and in the tax receipts
herewith delivered to you. in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set
forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon personal property of the
respective taxpayers in the County of Camden, and this order shall be a full and sufficient
authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell personal property of such
taxpayers for and on account thereof, in accordance with the law.

SOUTH MILLS COURTHOUSE SHILOH TOTAL

15,070.68 15,749.54 8,577.40 39,397.62

Witness my hand and official seal this day of

Chairman. Camden County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of Camden Count)

This is to certify that I have received the tax receipts and duplicates for collection
in the amounts as listed herein.

ax Administrator of Camden County

Page 61 of 134



Application for Citizen Service -Volunteer Form

Ifyou are a citizen of Camden County and would like to serve on one of the County's boards or commissions, please

complete this application and return it to the County Manager's Office, 330 East HWY 158, and mail to: P.O. Box 190,

Camden, North Carolina 27921 or e-mail mrenshaw(a)camdencountvnc.qov.

Name: ^IcLfl 3~e-p-pf oa. \~

Mailing Address: ] 7- C (t^^rs A\/-eAog- Cl^m^g^ (rO C ~2_~? ^ 2 )

Township you live in: j CK ^

Telephone (home): 2CT'^-3>3 2_ ^i k b (business): K) °C^-

Email address: CQJ \ ^ S~S (cu (A uj V^\ >I • ^ ^ <e ^

t^lcT' D^atL

Are you a registered voter? (Yes; No

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? Yes (™°)

Please identify any talent, interest, skill, experience or educational preparation which might be helpful to a board or

commission: &rKrgA (j-SAXC \^ M^r^ gjCPeTieAo? i^ O^Kc j^eUtxA ekocc^\\'^\

fetj kXark^J ard ^Av/OvV.O's CyCcQc,\.M ^T^-). ^U^ftfrxfls fUl JW jjv^f *4
( tAooh&--; ' ¥ f • I

Boards or Commissions upon which you are interested in serving: U\b(*up ^

As a member of a Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend at least 75% of the meetings. Please note the

by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This application is a notification of your

interest to serve on a Board or Commission to be considered by the Board of Commissioners when a vacancy

occurs. Thanks for your interest in Camden County Government

Signature: '^kXlcJUlj** W U Date: 2il^(), lc\f

Camden County, NC

Page 62 of 134



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          
 
 
 

Item Number:  7.G 

     

Meeting Date:   August 3, 2015 

Attachments:   Sketch Plan/Staff Findings/Development Impact 

                                    Statement  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public Meeting; Sketch Plan  
                       Mill Run - Common Open Space Major 
                       Subdivision (UDO 2015-06-07) 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Harbinger Land & Timber LLC/Assorted Development Corporation has applied 
for Sketch Plan approval for Mill Run Subdivision (45 lots) as a Common Open 
Space (Article 151.290 of the Camden County Code of Ordinances) Major 
Subdivision.  Application went to the Planning Board on July 15, 2015 and after 
presentation by Planning Staff and discussion made a recommendation to 
approve the yield plan/sketch plan with the recommendations listed in Planning 
Staffs Findings. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Set public meeting for Tuesday, September 8, 2015 

  

  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

T. White        ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

T. White         ____ 
C. Riggs       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

Page 63 of 134



Page 64 of 134



Page 65 of 134



Page 66 of 134



Page 67 of 134



Page 68 of 134



Page 69 of 134



Page 70 of 134



Page 71 of 134



Page 72 of 134



Page 73 of 134



 

Page 74 of 134



Page 75 of 134



Page 76 of 134



Page 77 of 134



Page 78 of 134



Page 79 of 134



Page 80 of 134



Page 81 of 134



Page 82 of 134



Page 83 of 134



Page 84 of 134



Page 85 of 134



Page 86 of 134



Page 87 of 134



Page 88 of 134



Page 89 of 134



Page 90 of 134



Page 91 of 134



Page 92 of 134



Page 93 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.H 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3rd, 2015 

Attachments:   5 (20 Pages) 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Resolution No. 2015-08-01 

   Stepping Up 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
Stepping Up is a national initiative to reduce the number of people with mental illnesses 

in county jails. NACo is one of several partners in this effort, which also includes the National 

Sheriffs Association and the National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI). 

 

NACo has provided many resources on its website to support counties who are interested 

in this issue. Attached are examples of some of some of the many resources provided through 

the initiative.  
 

NACo program resources will be provided free of charge, however nominal costs may 

be incurred in hosting future committee meetings. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Review and Approve Resolution No. 2015-08-01 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 94 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.H 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3rd, 2015 

Attachments:   5 (20 Pages) 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Resolution No. 2015-08-01 

   Stepping Up 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
Stepping Up is a national initiative to reduce the number of people with mental illnesses 

in county jails. NACo is one of several partners in this effort, which also includes the National 

Sheriffs Association and the National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI). 

 

NACo has provided many resources on its website to support counties who are interested 

in this issue. Attached are examples of some of some of the many resources provided through 

the initiative.  
 

NACo program resources will be provided free of charge, however nominal costs may 

be incurred in hosting future committee meetings. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Review and Approve Resolution No. 2015-08-01 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 95 of 134



STEPPING UP: A National Initiative to Reduce  
the Number of People with Mental Illnesses in Jails
THERE WAS A TIME WHEN NEWS OF JAILS serving more people with mental illnesses than in-patient treatment 
facilities was shocking. Now, it is not surprising to hear that jails across the nation serve an estimated 2 
million people with serious mental illnesses each year1—almost three-quarters of whom also have substance 
use disorders2 —or that the prevalence of people with serious mental illnesses in jails is three to six times 
higher than for the general population.3 Once incarcerated, they tend to stay longer in jail and upon release 
are at a higher risk of returning than individuals without these disorders.

The human toll—and its cost to taxpayers—is staggering. Jails spend two to three times more on adults 
with mental illnesses that require intervention than on people without those needs,4 yet often do not see 
improvements in recidivism or recovery. Despite counties’ tremendous efforts to address this problem, 
they are often thwarted by significant obstacles, such as coordinating multiple systems and operating with 
minimal resources. Without change, large numbers of people with mental illnesses will continue to cycle 
through the criminal justice system, often resulting in missed opportunities to link them to treatment, 
tragic outcomes, inefficient use of funding, and failure to improve public safety. 

The National Initiative
Recognizing the critical role local and state officials play in supporting change, the National Association 
of Counties (NACo), the Council of State Governments (CSG) Justice Center, and the American 
Psychiatric Foundation (APF) have come together to lead a national initiative to help advance counties’ 
efforts to reduce the number of adults with mental and co-occurring substance use disorders in jails. With 
support from the U.S. Justice Department’s Bureau of Justice Assistance, the initiative will build on the 
many innovative and proven practices being implemented across the country. The initiative engages a 
diverse group of organizations with expertise on these issues, including those representing sheriffs, jail 
administrators, judges, community corrections professionals, treatment providers, people with mental 
illnesses and their families, mental health and substance use program directors, and other stakeholders. 

The initiative is about creating a long-term, national movement—not a moment in time—to raise awareness 
of the factors contributing to the over-representation of people with mental illnesses in jails, and then using 
practices and strategies that work to drive those numbers down.  The initiative has two key components:

1. A CALL TO ACTION demonstrating strong county and state leadership and a shared commitment to a 
multi-step planning process that can achieve concrete results for jails in counties of all sizes. 

The Call to Action is more than a vague promise for reform; it focuses on developing an actionable 
plan that can be used to achieve county and state system changes. As part of this Call to Action, county 
elected officials are being asked to pass a resolution and work with other leaders (e.g., the sheriff, 
district attorney, treatment providers, and state policymakers), people with mental illnesses and their 
advocates, and other stakeholders on the following six actions:  

• Convene or draw on a diverse team of leaders and decision makers from multiple agencies committed 
to safely reducing the number of people with mental illnesses in jails. 

Page 96 of 134

http://www.naco.org/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.naco.org/Pages/default.aspx
http://csgjusticecenter.org/
http://www.americanpsychiatricfoundation.org/about-apf
http://www.americanpsychiatricfoundation.org/about-apf
http://www.bja.gov


• Collect and review prevalence numbers and assess individuals’ needs to better identify adults entering 
jails with mental illnesses and their recidivism risk, and use that baseline information to guide 
decision making at the system, program, and case levels. 

• Examine treatment and service capacity to determine which programs and services are available in the 
county for people with mental illnesses and co-occurring substance use disorders, and identify state 
and local policy and funding barriers to minimizing contact with the justice system and providing 
treatment and supports in the community.

• Develop a plan with measurable outcomes that draws on the jail assessment and prevalence data and 
the examination of available treatment and service capacity, while considering identified barriers.

• Implement research-based approaches that advance the plan.

• Create a process to track progress using data and information systems, and to report on successes. 

In addition to county leaders, national and state associations, criminal justice and behavioral health 
professionals, state and local policymakers, others with jail authority, and individuals committed to 
reducing the number of people with mental illnesses in jails should sign on to the Call to Action. 
Stepping Up participants will receive an online toolkit keyed to the six actions, with a series of 
exercises and related distance-learning opportunities, peer-to-peer exchanges, and key resources from 
initiative partners.5  The online toolkit will include self-assessment checklists and information to assist 
participants working in counties in identifying how much progress they have already made and a 
planning template to help county teams develop data-driven strategies that are tailored to local needs.  

2. A NATIONAL SUMMIT to advance county-led plans to reduce the number of people with mental illnesses 
in jails. 

Supported by the American Psychiatric Foundation, a summit will be convened in the spring of 2016 
in Washington, DC, that includes counties that have signed on to the Call to Action, as well as state 
officials and community stakeholders such as criminal justice professionals, treatment providers, 
people with mental illnesses and their advocates, and other subject-matter experts. The summit will 
help counties advance their plans and measure progress, and identify a core group of counties that 
are poised to lead others in their regions. Follow-up assistance will be provided to participants to help 
refine strategies that can be used in counties across the nation. After the 2016 summit, participants 
will be notified of potential opportunities for sites to be selected for more intensive assistance through 
federal and private grant programs.  

Although much of the initiative focuses on county efforts, states will be engaged at every step to ensure that their 
legislative mandates, policies, and resource-allocation decisions do not create barriers to plan implementation.  

To learn more about the initiative or to join the Call to Action, go to StepUpTogether.org.

Endnotes   
1. Steadman, Henry, et al., “Prevalence of Serious Mental Illness among Jail Inmates.” Psychiatric Services 60, no. 6 (2009): 761–765.  

These numbers refer to jail admissions. Even greater numbers of individuals have mental illnesses that are not “serious” mental 
illnesses, but still require resource-intensive responses. 

2. Abram, Karen M., and Linda A. Teplin, “Co-occurring Disorders Among Mentally Ill Jail Detainees,” American Psychologist 46, no. 10 
(1991): 1036–1045.

3. Steadman, Henry, et al., “Prevalence of Serious Mental Illness among Jail Inmates.” 
4. See, e.g., Swanson, Jeffery, et al., Costs of Criminal Justice Involvement in Connecticut: Final Report (Durham: Duke University School of Medicine, 2011). 
5. Among the key partners are the National Alliance on Mental Illness; Major County Sheriffs’ Association; National Association of County 

Behavioral Health & Developmental Disability Directors; National Association of State Alcohol and Drug Abuse Directors; National 
Association of State Mental Health Program Directors; National Council for Behavioral Health; National Sheriffs’ Association; and 
Policy Research Associates. 

Page 97 of 134

http://www.csgjusticecenter.org/mental-health/county-improvement-project/stepping-up
http://www.nami.org/
http://www.mcsheriffs.com/
http://www.nacbhd.org/
http://www.nacbhd.org/
http://nasadad.org/
http://www.nasmhpd.org/index.aspx
http://www.nasmhpd.org/index.aspx
http://www.thenationalcouncil.org/
http://www.sheriffs.org/
http://www.prainc.com/


©	  Council	  of	  State	  Governments	  Justice	  Center,	  2015	  

A   Na t i ona l    I n i t i a t i v e    t o    R educe    t he   
Numbe r    o f    P eop l e   w i t h   Men t a l    I l l n e s s e s
i n    J a i l s   

Technical   Assistance  Module  1  Planning  Guide  
Convene  a  Diverse  Team  of  Leaders  and  Stakeholders  

Stepping  Up  Planning  Guides  

This	   is	  one	  of	   five	  planning	  guides	  designed	   to	  help	   counties	  and	  other	  participants	   complete	   the	  action	   steps	  
supported	  under	  Stepping	  Up.	  The	  planning	  guides,	  which	  are	  just	  one	  of	  the	  many	  materials	  available	  to	  counties	  
and	  their	  partners	  through	  this	  initiative,	  are	  meant	  to	  facilitate	  a	  collaborative	  planning	  process	  and	  help	  users	  
identify	   the	   types	   of	   assistance	   that	   will	   meet	   their	   distinct	   needs.	   To	   learn	   more	   about	   available	   technical	  
assistance	  resources,	  or	  to	  ask	  specific	  questions,	  please	  visit	  the	  Resources	  Toolkit	  page.	  

Page 98 of 134

https://stepuptogether.org/toolkit


Module	  1	  Planning	  Guide	  |Stepping	  Up:	  A	  National	  Initiative	  to	  Reduce	  the	  Number	  of	  People	  with	  Mental	  Illnesses	  in	  Jails	   2	  

Stepping	  Up	  
Technical	  Assistance	  (TA)	  Resources	  

TA	  Module	  Resources	  
The	  five	  TA	  modules	  include:	  
v A	  planning	  guide	  
v Training	  webinar(s)	  providing	  information	  on	  

how	  to	  successfully	  complete	  each	  module	  
v A	  curated	  resource	  library	  with	  research,	  

case	  studies,	  and	  other	  tools	  
v Distance-‐based	  learning	  opportunities	  on	  key	  

topics	  of	  interest	  or	  audiences	  (e.g.,	  the	  
needs	  of	  rural	  counties)	  

v Peer-‐to-‐peer	  exchanges	  to	  share	  best	  
practices	  and	  discuss	  common	  challenges	  

v The	  ability	  to	  ask	  targeted	  questions	  of	  
experts	  

v Supplemental	  tools	  that	  can	  help	  facilitate	  
discussions	  among	  your	  planning	  team	  

These	  resources	  are	  being	  made	  available	  at	  
Resources	  Toolkit	  

National	  Summit	  
A	  summit	  will	  be	  convened	  in	  the	  spring	  of	  2016	  
in	  Washington,	  D.C.,	  to	  bring	  together	  counties	  to	  
advance	  their	  planning	  efforts	  and	  inform	  
participants	  about	  opportunities	  for	  more	  
intensive	  assistance	  through	  federal	  and	  private	  
grant	  programs	  and	  other	  forms	  of	  support.	  	  
This	  planning	  guide	  and	  other	  tools	  will	  help	  your	  
county	  prepare	  for	  this	  summit	  and	  position	  your	  
county	  to	  be	  competitive	  for	  any	  future	  TA	  
opportunities.	  	  

Overview  of  Stepping  Up   Technical   Assistance  

Support	  for	  Counties	  and	  Their	  Partners	  	  

Stepping	  Up	  brings	  together	  dedicated	  state	  and	  county	  officials,	  behavioral	  health	  and	  criminal	  
justice	  professionals,	  people	  with	  mental	  illnesses,	  and	  other	  community	  stakeholders	  and	  
provides	  them	  with	  the	  necessary	  resources	  to	  advance	  local	  efforts	  to	  reduce	  the	  number	  of	  
people	  with	  mental	  illnesses	  in	  jails	  by	  engaging	  in	  a	  comprehensive,	  outcome-‐oriented	  
planning	  and	  implementation	  process.	  	  

Technical	  Assistance	  Modules	  

There	  are	  five	  technical	  assistance	  modules	  available,	  which	  are	  intended	  to	  help	  county	  
leaders	  complete	  the	  six	  steps	  supported	  by	  the	  initiative.	  	  	  

• Module	  1:	  Convene	  a	  diverse	  team	  of	  leaders	  and	  stakeholders
• Module	  2:	  Collect	  and	  review	  data	  on	  the	  prevalence	  of	  people	  with	  mental	  illnesses	  in	  jails

and	  assess	  their	  treatment	  needs
• Module	  3:	  Examine	  treatment	  and	  service	  capacity	  and	  identify	  policy	  and	  resource

barriers	  to	  minimizing	  individuals’	  contact	  with	  the	  justice	  system	  and	  providing	  needed
treatment	  and	  supports

• Module	  4:	  Develop	  a	  plan	  with	  measurable	  outcomes	  that	  uses	  research-‐based
approaches1

• Module	  5:	  Create	  a	  process	  to	  track	  and	  report	  on	  progress
Each	  module	  includes	  a	  planning	  guide	  with	  exercises	  to	  help	  facilitate	  discussion	  and	  planning	  
efforts	  among	  county	  leaders,	  as	  well	  as	  a	  larger	  suite	  of	  resources	  (see	  sidebar).	  	  

Counties	  will	  be	  starting	  at	  different	  stages	  in	  the	  planning	  process—many	  have	  already	  made	  
significant	  strides	  towards	  achieving	  the	  objectives	  of	  this	  initiative	  while	  others	  may	  be	  at	  the	  
beginning	  of	  this	  process.	  Users	  should	  tailor	  these	  resources	  to	  the	  distinct	  needs	  and	  
strengths	  of	  a	  county.	  Although	  the	  webinar	  schedule	  is	  designed	  to	  help	  pace	  planning	  teams	  

1	  Module	  4	  covers	  two	  of	  the	  Stepping	  Up	  action	  steps:	  develop	  a	  plan	  and	  use	  research-‐based	  approaches.	  

Page 99 of 134

https://stepuptogether.org/toolkit
https://stepuptogether.org/toolkit


Module	  1	  Planning	  Guide	  |Stepping	  Up:	  A	  National	  Initiative	  to	  Reduce	  the	  Number	  of	  People	  with	  Mental	  Illnesses	  in	  Jails	   3	  

through	  these	  modules	  in	  a	  sequential	  fashion,	  the	  exercises	  may	  be	  completed	  in	  any	  order	  or	  speed.	  	  

Overview  of  Module  1:   Convene  a  Diverse  Team  of  Leaders  and  Stakeholders  

The	  Module	  1	  Planning	  Guide	  will	  help	  your	  county	  achieve	  the	  following	  objectives:	  	  

• Designate	  or	  bring	  together	  a	  collaborative,	  diverse	  group	  of	  agency	  decision	  makers	  and	  stakeholders
who	  are	  committed	  to	  safely	  reducing	  the	  number	  of	  adults	  with	  mental	  illnesses	  in	  jail	  and	  can	  serve
as	  a	  planning	  team	  for	  this	  initiative

• Identify	  the	  specific	  roles	  different	  stakeholders	  in	  your	  county	  will	  play	  in	  the	  planning	  process,	  from
executive	  policymakers,	  to	  line	  staff,	  to	  community	  representatives

Why	  This	  Module	  Is	  Important	  

Reducing	  the	  number	  of	  adults	  with	  mental	  illnesses	  in	  jails	  requires	  a	  cross-‐system,	  collaborative	  
approach:	  no	  single	  system	  can	  accomplish	  this	  goal	  alone.	  It	  is	  essential	  to	  bring	  together	  the	  key	  
decision	  makers	  and	  community	  leaders	  who	  can	  effect	  change.	  Many	  counties	  already	  have	  mechanisms	  
in	  place	  for	  bringing	  various	  disciplines	  and	  change	  agents	  together	  in	  consistent	  and	  strategic	  ways,	  such	  
as	  criminal	  justice/mental	  health	  task	  forces,	  local	  criminal	  justice	  coordinating	  committees,	  or	  reentry	  
committees.	  Other	  counties	  will	  be	  identifying	  the	  right	  people	  and	  agencies	  to	  include	  in	  their	  
collaborative	  for	  the	  first	  time.	  	  	  

Counties	  developing	  a	  new	  planning	  team	  for	  this	  initiative	  may	  wish	  to	  consider	  including	  representatives	  
such	  as	  county	  elected	  officials;	  the	  jail	  administrator;	  local	  law	  enforcement;	  behavioral	  health	  services	  
administrators	  and	  providers;	  court	  administrators	  and	  judges;	  prosecutors;	  defense	  attorneys;	  
community	  supervision	  representatives;	  pretrial	  personnel;	  reentry	  professionals;	  people	  with	  mental	  
illnesses,	  and	  their	  family	  members	  and	  advocates;	  researchers;	  municipal	  representatives	  such	  as	  
mayors;	  and	  people	  from	  faith-‐based	  organizations.	  Counties	  may	  also	  want	  to	  consider	  inviting	  
representatives	  of	  state-‐level	  government	  agencies	  and	  community-‐based	  service	  providers	  to	  participate	  
in	  the	  group.	  Each	  locality	  should	  select	  the	  right	  people	  and	  disciplines	  based	  on	  their	  needs.	  	  

To	  drive	  an	  effective	  planning	  process,	  clear	  roles	  and	  responsibilities	  for	  the	  different	  participants	  
engaged	  in	  your	  initiative	  are	  necessary.	  For	  example,	  planning	  teams	  might	  include	  an	  executive-‐level	  
team	  that	  oversees	  the	  planning	  process	  and	  can	  make	  decisions	  on	  behalf	  of	  key	  agencies,	  a	  core	  team	  

Suggested	  Strategy	  for	  
Completing	  This	  TA	  Module	  

1. Identify	  leaders	  and	  stakeholders
in	  your	  community	  who	  have
signed	  the	  Stepping	  Up	  Call	  to
Action	  or
expressed/demonstrated	  a
commitment	  to	  the	  issues.

2. Designate	  a	  point	  person	  to	  lead
the	  completion	  of	  this	  planning
guide	  and	  establish	  the	  planning
team.

3. Complete	  exercise	  1A.	  This
exercise	  will	  help	  you	  identify
additional	  individuals	  and	  groups
that	  can	  support	  your	  planning
effort.

4. Review	  the	  Getting	  Started	  with
Stepping	  Up	  webinar,	  which
provides	  key	  information	  to	  help
you	  complete	  exercise	  1B.

5. Complete	  exercise	  1B	  to
determine	  which	  existing	  groups
or	  individuals	  will	  need	  to	  be	  on
the	  planning	  team	  and	  identify
gaps	  in	  representation	  and	  the
right	  individuals	  to	  fill	  them.

6. Access	  supplemental	  resources
to	  advance	  your	  planning	  efforts.

Page 100 of 134



Module	  1	  Planning	  Guide	  |Stepping	  Up:	  A	  National	  Initiative	  to	  Reduce	  the	  Number	  of	  People	  with	  Mental	  Illnesses	  in	  Jails	   4	  

that	  meets	  more	  frequently	  to	  develop	  the	  plan,	  and	  working	  groups	  that	  focus	  on	  specific	  issue	  areas	  and	  the	  inclusion	  of	  diverse	  perspectives.	  
This	  module	  will	  help	  you	  structure	  your	  planning	  team	  appropriately,	  delineate	  roles,	  and	  develop	  clear	  goals	  and	  objectives.	  	  

Exercise  1A:   Identify  What  You  Have    

Suggested	  Strategy	  to	  Complete	  Exercise	  1A:	  This	  module	  will	  help	  you	  establish	  your	  planning	  team—as	  such,	  the	  stakeholders	  engaged	  in	  this	  
initiative	  should	  start	  by	  identifying	  a	  point	  person	  to	  take	  the	  lead	  in	  completing	  the	  Module	  1	  planning	  guide	  for	  assembling	  your	  team	  (e.g.,	  a	  
CJCC	  coordinator).	  This	  point	  person	  should	  complete	  the	  exercise	  to	  assess	  which	  existing	  committees,	  task	  forces,	  or	  other	  groups	  and	  
stakeholders	  can	  serve	  as	  a	  planning	  team	  for	  Stepping	  Up,	  or	  to	  establish	  a	  new	  group.	  	  

Instructions:	  Answer	  the	  questions	  in	  the	  boxes	  that	  follow.	  

1. Do	  you	  have	  an	  existing	  group	  in	  your	  county	  that	  could	  be	  leveraged	  for	  this	  initiative	  (e.g.,	  a	  criminal	  justice	  coordinating	  council,	  reentry
working	  group,	  or	  criminal	  justice/mental	  health	  task	  force)?	  If	  so,	  what	  is	  the	  name	  and	  role	  of	  this	  group?

Page 101 of 134



Module	  1	  Planning	  Guide	  |Stepping	  Up:	  A	  National	  Initiative	  to	  Reduce	  the	  Number	  of	  People	  with	  Mental	  Illnesses	  in	  Jails	   5	  

2. If	  so,	  who	  are	  the	  members/positions/organizations	  included	  in	  the	  group?

Name	   Position/Title	   Organization	  

3. Who	  are	  the	  champions	  in	  your	  county	  for	  reducing	  the	  number	  of	  people	  with	  mental	  illnesses	  in	  the	  criminal	  justice	  system	  that	  you	  could
engage	  on	  this	  initiative	  (e.g.,	  a	  county	  elected	  official,	  judge,	  corrections	  director,	  county	  behavioral	  health	  director,	  or	  mental	  health
advocate)?	  What	  are	  the	  opportunities	  for,	  and	  barriers	  to,	  engaging	  them?

Name/Position	   Opportunities	   Barriers	  

4. Who	  are	  the	  state	  champions	  (e.g.,	  a	  judge,	  state	  mental	  health	  program	  director,	  state	  legislator,	  or	  representative	  of	  the	  governor’s	  office)
that	  you	  could	  engage	  in	  this	  initiative?	  What	  are	  the	  opportunities	  for,	  and	  barriers	  to,	  involving	  these	  champions?

Page 102 of 134



Module	  1	  Planning	  Guide	  |Stepping	  Up:	  A	  National	  Initiative	  to	  Reduce	  the	  Number	  of	  People	  with	  Mental	  Illnesses	  in	  Jails	   6	  

Name/Position	   Opportunities	   Barriers	  

5. How	  will	  you	  introduce	  these	  groups	  and	  individuals	  to	  the	  goals	  of	  Stepping	  Up	  in	  order	  to	  engage	  them	  in	  the	  effort	  (e.g.,	  invite	  them	  to	  a
meeting	  of	  the	  stakeholder	  group,	  send	  a	  press	  release,	  share	  the	  county	  resolution)?

Page 103 of 134



Module	  1	  Planning	  Guide	  |Stepping	  Up:	  A	  National	  Initiative	  to	  Reduce	  the	  Number	  of	  People	  with	  Mental	  Illnesses	  in	  Jails	   7	  

Exercise  1B:   Identify  What  You  Need  

Suggested	  Strategy	  to	  Complete	  Exercise	  1B:	  The	  designated	  point	  person	  should	  complete	  the	  following	  exercise	  with	  all	  stakeholders	  who	  have	  
been	  identified	  thus	  far	  for	  participation	  in	  your	  planning	  effort.	  This	  exercise	  will	  help	  round	  out	  your	  planning	  team.	  You	  may	  find	  it	  useful	  to	  
review	  the	  Getting	  Started	  with	  Stepping	  Up	  webinar	  for	  Module	  1	  before	  completing	  this	  exercise.	  	  

Instructions:	  Complete	  the	  following	  table.	  Assess	  whether	  each	  goal	  in	  the	  left-‐hand	  column	  is	  being	  met,	  and	  if	  not,	  identify	  action	  steps	  to	  
accomplish	  this	  goal.	  	  

Goal	   Goal	  being	  met?	   Action	  steps	  to	  accomplish	  goal	  
Yes	   No	  

County	  has	  designated	  a	  planning	  team	  to	  advance	  
Stepping	  Up	  and	  complete	  the	  six	  action	  steps.	  	  
The	  planning	  team	  is	  composed	  of	  a	  diverse	  group	  
of	  leaders	  and	  local	  stakeholders,	  including	  
representatives.	  	  	  
Relevant	  state	  champions,	  policymakers,	  or	  those	  
sitting	  on	  state	  policy	  committees/working	  groups	  
have	  been	  invited	  to	  participate	  in	  the	  planning	  
team	  or	  are	  otherwise	  engaged.	  
Policymakers	  and	  decision	  makers	  from	  relevant	  
agencies	  are	  positioned	  to	  play	  an	  active	  role	  in	  the	  
planning	  process	  (e.g.,	  may	  serve	  on	  an	  executive	  
leadership	  team).	  
There	  is	  clear	  documentation	  of	  the	  planning	  
team’s	  goals,	  membership,	  and	  purpose	  (may	  be	  
formalized	  through	  an	  MOU	  or	  LOA).	  
The	  planning	  team	  is	  staffed	  to	  ensure	  planning	  
work	  can	  be	  completed	  and	  is	  coordinated	  across	  
multiple	  systems.	  
Members	  of	  the	  planning	  team	  and	  any	  subgroups	  
are	  scheduled	  to	  meet	  regularly.	  	  
The	  participants	  have	  a	  process	  for	  reporting	  on	  
progress	  (internally	  and	  externally).	  

Page 104 of 134

https://stepuptogether.org/toolkit


Module	  1	  Planning	  Guide	  |Stepping	  Up:	  A	  National	  Initiative	  to	  Reduce	  the	  Number	  of	  People	  with	  Mental	  Illnesses	  in	  Jails	   8	  

Wrapping  Up  and  Preparing  for  Module  2  
The	  exercises	  in	  this	  planning	  guide	  are	  designed	  to	  help	  you	  identify	  existing	  assets	  and	  develop	  a	  strategy	  to	  meet	  the	  goals	  of	  Module	  1.	  Upon	  
their	  completion,	  ensure	  there	  is	  a	  plan	  to	  implement	  any	  identified	  action	  steps	  and	  seek	  any	  additional	  guidance	  and	  support	  you	  need.	  	  

As	  your	  planning	  team	  comes	  together,	  make	  sure	  they	  are	  informed	  about	  the	  technical	  assistance	  resources	  and	  encourage	  them	  to	  register	  
for	  the	  webinar	  for	  Module	  2:	  Stepping	  Up:	  Strategies	  to	  Measure	  Prevalence	  and	  Assess	  the	  Needs	  of	  Individuals	  with	  Mental	  Illnesses	  in	  Jails,	  
which	  is	  scheduled	  for	  Tuesday,	  June	  30	  at	  2	  p.m.	  ET.	  

Module	  1	  Key	  Resources	  

The	  resources	  below	  are	  meant	  to	  guide	  and	  assist	  with the exercises for Module	  1.	  For	  additional	  tools	  and	  publications,	  please	  visit	  the	  Key	  Resources.	  	  

• Getting	  It	  Right:	  Collaborative	  Problem	  Solving	  for	  Criminal	  Justice
• Guidelines	  for	  Developing	  a	  Criminal	  Justice	  Coordinating	  Committee	  (CJCC)
• Information	  Sharing	  in	  Criminal	  Justice—Mental	  Health	  Collaborations:	  Working	  with	  HIPAA	  and	  Other	  Privacy	  Laws

This	  Planning	  Guide	  has	  been	  prepared	  for	  Stepping	  Up	  participants.	  The	  guide	  is	  supported	  by	  the	  Bureau	  of	  Justice	  Assistance,	  U.S.	  Department	  of	  Justice,	  
under	  grant	  number	  2012-‐CZ-‐BX-‐K071,	  which	  supports	  the	  National	  Reentry	  Resource	  Center	  (NRRC).	  The	  Bureau	  of	  Justice	  Assistance	  is	  a	  component	  of	  the	  
Office	  of	  Justice	  Programs,	  which	  also	  includes	  the	  Bureau	  of	  Justice	  Statistics,	  the	  National	  Institute	  of	  Justice,	  the	  Office	  of	  Juvenile	  Justice	  and	  Delinquency	  
Prevention,	  and	  the	  Office	  for	  Victims	  of	  Crime.	  The	  views	  expressed	  do	  not	  necessarily	  reflect	  the	  official	  position	  or	  policies	  of	  the	  U.S.	  Department	  of	  Justice.	  

The	  guide	  was	  developed	  by	  the	  Council	  of	  State	  Governments	  (CSG)	  Justice	  Center	  in	  partnership	  with	  the	  National	  Association	  of	  Counties	  (NACo)	  and	  the	  
American	  Psychiatric	  Foundation	  as	  part	  of	  the	  Stepping	  Up	  suite	  of	  technical	  assistance	  resources.	  	  	  

Page 105 of 134

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/1257871355262494210
https://stepuptogether.org/
www.bja.gov
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/019834.pdf
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/017232.pdf
https://www.bja.gov/Publications/CSG_CJMH_Info_Sharing.pdf
https://stepuptogether.org/key-resources#module2


 
1 

The Stepping Up Initiative 

Key Resources 

Module 1: Convene a diverse team of leaders and stakeholders 

Community Conversations About Mental Health: Discussion Guide 

Designed to help people and organizations who want to organize community conversations around 

mental health break down misperceptions and promote recovery; find innovative community-based 

solutions to treatment barriers; and develop clear steps for communities to address mental health needs. 

(SAMHSA) 

The Criminal Justice Coordinating Council Network Mini-Guide Series: Managing a CJCC in a Small 

Jurisdiction 

Interviews with two coordinators from criminal justice coordinating councils in small jurisdictions, who 

highlight the importance of having a coordinating council as well as the struggles they’ve faced and the 

useful solutions they’ve implemented. (The Justice Management Institute)  

Criminal Justice/Mental Health Consensus Project 

Helps policymakers and criminal justice and mental health professionals improve the response to people 

with mental illnesses who become involved in, or are at risk of involvement in, the criminal justice 

system. Chapter V focuses on improving collaboration. (CSG Justice Center) 

Engaging Stakeholders in Your Project 

Thirteen strategies to engage the community in problem-solving justice initiatives that practitioners have 

found successful. (Center for Court Innovation) 

Getting It Right: Collaborative Problem Solving for Criminal Justice 

Spells out a “practical team-based approach to envisioning the kind of criminal justice system a 

community wants; assessing the current system; and planning and implementing strategies for ‘getting it 

right’” (ix). (National Institute of Corrections) 

Information Sharing in Criminal Justice–Mental Health Collaborations: Working with HIPAA and Other 

Privacy Laws 

Intended to help criminal justice officials work with health professionals to better use information from 

both systems to reduce, when appropriate, criminal justice involvement for people with mental illnesses 

and provide better links to treatment. (CSG Justice Center and BJA) 

Involving Peers in Criminal Justice & Problem-Solving Collaboratives 

Defines the titles and roles of people who are involved in criminal justice and behavioral health 

collaboratives and provides guidance on how to include people impacted by the justice system. 

(SAMHSA’S GAINS Center) 

NAMI: Engage Your Community 

Suggestions for how mental health awareness advocates can work with their community to make changes. 

(NAMI) 

Page 106 of 134

http://www.mentalhealth.gov/talk/community-conversation/discussion_guide_07-22-13.pdf
http://www.mentalhealth.gov/talk/community-conversation/discussion_guide_07-22-13.pdf
http://69.195.124.207/~jmijust1/wp-content/uploads/2014/04/CJCCMiniGuide-Small-Jurisdictions.pdf
http://69.195.124.207/~jmijust1/wp-content/uploads/2014/04/CJCCMiniGuide-Small-Jurisdictions.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/mental-health-projects/report-of-the-consensus-project/
http://www.courtinnovation.org/sites/default/files/Engaging_Stakeholders_in_Your_Project%5B1%5D.pdf
http://www.courtinnovation.org/sites/default/files/Engaging_Stakeholders_in_Your_Project%5B1%5D.pdf
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/019834.pdf
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/019834.pdf
https://www.bja.gov/Publications/CSG_CJMH_Info_Sharing.pdf
https://www.bja.gov/Publications/CSG_CJMH_Info_Sharing.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/cms-assets/documents/62304-42605.peersupportfactsweb.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/cms-assets/documents/62304-42605.peersupportfactsweb.pdf
https://www.nami.org/Get-Involved/Raise-Awareness/Engage-Your-Community
https://www.nami.org/Get-Involved/Raise-Awareness/Engage-Your-Community


 
2 

Guidelines for Developing a Criminal Justice Coordinating Committee 

Strategies and considerations for developing an effective criminal justice coordinating committee to assist 

jurisdictions in alleviating jail crowding and accomplishing other criminal justice system improvements. 

(National Institute of Corrections)  

Guidelines for Staffing a Local Criminal Justice Coordinating Committee 

The logistics of staffing a local criminal justice coordinating committee, including what the costs are to 

develop a staff and how staff can be funded, trained, and evaluated. (National Institute of Corrections) 

Howard County Behavioral Health Task Force 

An example of a county Behavioral Health Task Force. (Howard County, Maryland Mental Health 

Authority) 

Multnomah County (Oregon) Local Public Safety Coordinating Council 

An example of a county criminal justice coordinating council. (NACo) 

National Network of Criminal Justice Coordinating Councils 

More information and resources about criminal justice coordinating councils. (The Justice Management 

Institute) 

Ten Ways to Engage People Affected by Mental Illness in Your Community 

NAMI has developed a list of steps that county leaders and other Stepping Up partners can take to engage 

people with mental illnesses and their families in efforts to reduce the number of people with mental 

illnesses in jails. 

 

Module 2: Collect and review data on the prevalence of people with mental illnesses in jails and assess 

their treatment need 

Archived Webinar: Working with Data for Mental Health Court Practitioners, Part One: Data Collection 

and Manipulation 

An orientation to data collection in mental health courts and concrete skills for working with data in 

Microsoft Excel. (CSG Justice Center) 

Archived Webinar: Risk-Need-Responsivity 101: A Primer for SCA and JMHCP Grant Recipients 

Information on Risk-Need-Responsivity as well as guidance on implementing risk assessment tools to 

direct resources and support recidivism-reduction strategies. (CSG Justice Center) 

Closing the Gap: Using Criminal Justice and Public Health Data to Improve the Identification of Mental 

Illness 

Information to improve the identification of mental health needs for a specific population; improve the 

delivery of mental health services; support the design of new policies and programs; and establish a 

baseline against which to measure the effectiveness of new initiatives. (Vera Institute of Justice) 

Page 107 of 134

https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/017232.pdf
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/017232.pdf
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/026308.pdf
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/026308.pdf
http://www.hcmha.org/behavioral-health-task-force-2/
http://www.naco.org/programs/csd/Documents/Criminal%20Justice/County%20Justice%20Program%20Examples/Multnomah%20County%20Local%20Public%20Safety%20Coordinating%20Council.pdf
http://www.naco.org/programs/csd/Documents/Criminal%20Justice/County%20Justice%20Program%20Examples/Multnomah%20County%20Local%20Public%20Safety%20Coordinating%20Council.pdf
http://www.jmijustice.org/network-coordination/national-network-criminal-justice-coordinating-councils/
http://www.jmijustice.org/network-coordination/national-network-criminal-justice-coordinating-councils/
https://stepuptogether.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/05/Stepping-Up-Individuals-Two-Pagerv-w_new-NACo-logo.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/cp/webinars/webinar-archive-working-with-data-for-mental-health-court-practitioners-part-one-data-collection-and-manipulation/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/cp/webinars/webinar-archive-working-with-data-for-mental-health-court-practitioners-part-one-data-collection-and-manipulation/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/reentry/webinars/risk-need-responsivity-101-a-primer-for-sca-and-jmhcp-grant-recipients/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/reentry/webinars/risk-need-responsivity-101-a-primer-for-sca-and-jmhcp-grant-recipients/
http://www.vera.org/pubs/closing-gap-using-criminal-justice-and-public-health-data-improve-identification-mental-illness
http://www.vera.org/pubs/closing-gap-using-criminal-justice-and-public-health-data-improve-identification-mental-illness


 
3 

How to Collect and Analyze Data: A Manual for Sheriffs and Jail Administrators 

The third edition of a useful guide for anyone who needs to gather and analyze data concerning various 

jail-related issues, with guidance on how information can fuel policy decision-making. (National Institute 

of Corrections) 

Mental Health Screens for Corrections 

Highlights two projects to create and validate mental health screening instruments that corrections staff 

can use during intake. The researchers created short questionnaires, reproduced in the appendices that 

accurately identify inmates who require mental health interventions. (National Institute of Justice) 

Reducing Criminal Recidivism for Justice-Involved Persons with Mental Illness: Risk/Needs/Responsivity 

and Cognitive-Behavioral Interventions 

A brief introduction and review of Risk-Need-Responsivity, the “leading offender recidivism-targeted 

intervention paradigm.” (SAMHSA’S GAINS Center) 

Risk Assessment Instruments Validated and Implemented in Correctional Settings in the United States: 

An Empirical Guide 

Foundational knowledge and a working framework of risk assessment instruments for criminal justice 

and social service agencies, practitioners, and policymakers. (CSG Justice Center) 

Screening and Assessment of Co-occurring Disorders in the Justice System 

An overview of the systemic and clinical challenges involved in the screening and assessment of people 

with co-occurring disorders who are involved in the criminal justice system, and a review of current 

assessment practices and instruments. (University of South Florida, SAMHSA’s GAINS Center) 

Working with People with Mental Illness Involved in the Criminal Justice System: What Mental Health 

Service Providers Need to Know 

What mental health service providers should know about the criminal justice system, the people they 

serve  and how they can best meet the needs of people with mental illnesses in the justice system. 

(SAMHSA’S GAINS Center) 

 

Module 3: Examine treatment and service capacity and identify policy and resource barriers to 

minimizing individuals’ contact with the justice system and providing needed treatment and supports 

Adults with Behavioral Health Needs Under Correctional Supervision: A Shared Framework for Reducing 

Recidivism and Promoting Recovery 

An evidence-based framework for prioritizing resources based on assessments of individuals’ risk of 

committing a future crime and their treatment and support needs, along with a proposed structure for 

agencies to build collaborative responses. (CSG Justice Center) 

Archived Webinar: Addressing Co-Occurring Disorders in Adult Court-Based Programs 

An overview of how court-based programs (e.g., problem-solving courts) can effectively address the needs 

Page 108 of 134

https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/021826.pdf
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/021826.pdf
https://www.ncjrs.gov/pdffiles1/nij/216152.pdf
https://www.ncjrs.gov/pdffiles1/nij/216152.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/cms-assets/documents/200797-595809.reducing-criminal-recidivism.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/cms-assets/documents/200797-595809.reducing-criminal-recidivism.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/07/Risk-Instruments-Guide.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/07/Risk-Instruments-Guide.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/disorders/ScreeningAndAssessment.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/disorders/ScreeningAndAssessment.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/jail_diversion/Massaro.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/jail_diversion/Massaro.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/mental-health/publications/behavioral-health-framework
http://csgjusticecenter.org/mental-health/publications/behavioral-health-framework
http://csgjusticecenter.org/courts/webinars/webinar-archive-addressing-co-occurring-disorders-in-adult-court-based-programs/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/courts/webinars/webinar-archive-addressing-co-occurring-disorders-in-adult-court-based-programs/


 
4 

of participants who have both mental health and substance use disorders, including discussion on what 

these programs can do to ensure their success. (CSG Justice Center)  

Blueprint for Success: The Bexar County Model (How to Set Up a Jail Diversion Program in Your 

Community) 

A step-by-step guide to help other communities develop the conceptual framework and collaborations 

necessary for a successful jail diversion program. (Bexar County Jail Diversion Program) 

County Jails and the Affordable Care Act: Enrolling Eligible Individuals in Health Coverage 

Information on healthcare coverage eligibility and enrollment for qualified individuals who are held in 

county jails or are preparing to reenter the community, with examples of existing county-based 

enrollment strategies. (NACo) 

Developing a Comprehensive Plan for Mental Health & Criminal Justice Collaboration: The Sequential 

Intercept Model 

A conceptual framework for communities to organize targeted strategies for people involved with the 

criminal justice system who have serious mental illnesses. (SAMHSA’S GAINS Center) 

Franklin County, Ohio – A County Justice and Behavioral Health Systems Improvement Project 

An extensive data analysis coupled with more than 50 in-person interviews with local and state leaders led 

to these key recommendations for reducing the number of people with behavioral health disorders who 

cycle in and out of jail in Franklin County, Ohio. (CSG Justice Center) 

Guidelines for the Successful Transition of People with Behavioral Health Disorders from Jail and Prison 

Promotes the criminal justice partnerships necessary to develop successful approaches to identifying 

individuals in need of services, determining what services these individuals need, and addressing those 

needs during their transition from incarceration to community-based treatment and provision. 

(SAMHSA’S GAINS Center) 

A Guide to Implementing Police-Based Diversion Programs for People with Mental Illness 

Describes specialized police response program models, identifies common program characteristics, details 

implementation steps, and offers lessons learned. (SAMHSA’S GAINS Center) 

Improving Responses to People with Mental Illnesses: The Essential Elements of a Specialized Law 

Enforcement-Based Program 

Ten essential elements for any specialized law enforcement-based response program and a common 

framework for program design and implementation, designed to promote positive outcomes while being 

sensitive to every jurisdiction’s distinct needs and resources. (CSG Justice Center and PERF) 

Improving Responses to People with Mental Illnesses: The Essential Elements of a Mental Health Court 

Ten essential elements to mental health court design and implementation. (CSG Justice Center) 

Improving Responses to People with Mental Illnesses: The Essential Elements of Specialized Probation 

Initiatives 

Ten key components found in successful initiatives to improve outcomes for people with mental illnesses 

Page 109 of 134

http://www.naco.org/programs/csd/Documents/Criminal%20Justice/Jail%20Diversion%20Forum%20Materials/Jail%20Diversion%20Toolkit.pdf
http://www.naco.org/programs/csd/Documents/Criminal%20Justice/Jail%20Diversion%20Forum%20Materials/Jail%20Diversion%20Toolkit.pdf
http://www.naco.org/newsroom/pubs/Documents/Health,%20Human%20Services%20and%20Justice/WebVersion_PWFIssueBrief.pdf
http://www.naco.org/newsroom/pubs/Documents/Health,%20Human%20Services%20and%20Justice/WebVersion_PWFIssueBrief.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/integrating/GAINS_Sequential_Intercept.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/integrating/GAINS_Sequential_Intercept.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/mental-health/publications/franklin-county-ohio-a-county-justice-and-behavioral-health-systems-improvement-project/
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/cms-assets/documents/143496-555803.guidelines-document.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/cms-assets/documents/143496-555803.guidelines-document.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/jail_diversion/AGuidetoImplementingPoliceBasedDiversion.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/jail_diversion/AGuidetoImplementingPoliceBasedDiversion.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/law-enforcement/publications/improving-responses-to-people-with-mental-illnesses-the-essential-elements-of-a-specialized-law-enforcement-based-program
http://csgjusticecenter.org/law-enforcement/publications/improving-responses-to-people-with-mental-illnesses-the-essential-elements-of-a-specialized-law-enforcement-based-program
http://csgjusticecenter.org/courts/publications/improving-responses-to-people-with-mental-illnesses-the-essential-elements-of-a-mental-health-court
http://csgjusticecenter.org/courts/publications/improving-responses-to-people-with-mental-illnesses-the-essential-elements-of-a-mental-health-court
http://csgjusticecenter.org/cp/publications/improving-responses-to-people-with-mental-illnesses-the-essential-elements-of-specialized-probation-initiatives
http://csgjusticecenter.org/cp/publications/improving-responses-to-people-with-mental-illnesses-the-essential-elements-of-specialized-probation-initiatives


 
5 

under probation supervision and specific recommendations for responding to this population’s complex 

treatment and service needs. (CSG Justice Center and PERF) 

Jail Diversion: Strategies for Persons with Serious Mental Illness 

Jail diversion strategies for people who have mental illness. (The National Association of Mental Health 

Planning and Advisory Councils) 

Judges’ Guide to Mental Illness in the Courtroom 

A two-page bench card to help judges recognize the signs of possible mental illnesses among 

individuals in the courtroom and respond sensitively and productively. (CSG Justice Center) 

Mapping the Criminal Justice System to Connect Justice-Involved Individuals with Treatment and Health 

Care under the Affordable Care Act 

A guide for states and local jurisdictions interested in using system mapping to maximize opportunities 

for criminal justice and health care system integration and efficiency through the Affordable Care Act. 

(National Institute of Corrections) 

 

Module 4: Develop a plan with measurable outcomes that uses research-based approaches 

A Checklist for Implementing Evidence-Based Practices and Programs for Justice-Involved Adults with 

Behavioral Health Disorders 

An easy-to-use checklist intended to help behavioral health agencies assess their use of evidence-based 

practices. (SAMHSA’s GAINS Center and CSG Justice Center) 

Criminal Justice/Mental Health Consensus Project (Chapter VIII) 

Helps policymakers and criminal justice and mental health professionals improve the response to people 

with mental illnesses who become involved in, or are at risk of involvement in, the criminal justice 

system. Chapter VIII focuses on measuring and evaluating outcomes. (CSG Justice Center) 

Michigan: Diversion Strategies Workgroup Executive Summary 

Includes information on Michigan’s Diversion Action Plan, which is an example of a plan for state system 

change in the diversion of individuals with mental illness away from incarceration and to monitored 

treatment. (Michigan State Diversion Strategies Workgroup) 

New York City, NY: Mayor’s Task Force on Behavioral Health and the Criminal Justice System: Action 

Plan 2014 

An example of a comprehensive plan to reduce the number of people with mental health and substance 

use problems in New York City’s jails. (City of New York Mayor’s Task Force) 

Practical Advice on Jail Diversion: Ten Years of Learnings on Jail Diversion from the CMHS National 

GAINS Center 

An explanation of how to develop and implement a jail diversion program for people with mental 

illnesses and co-occurring substance use disorders. (SAMHSA’s GAINS Center) 

Page 110 of 134

http://www.namhpac.org/PDFs/01/jaildiversion.pdf
http://www.namhpac.org/PDFs/01/jaildiversion.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/courts/publications/judges-guide-to-mental-illnesses-in-the-courtroom/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/courts/publications/judges-guide-to-mental-illnesses-in-the-courtroom/
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/028222.pdf
https://s3.amazonaws.com/static.nicic.gov/Library/028222.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/mental-health/publications/a-checklist-for-implementing-evidence-based-practices-and-programs-for-justice-involved-adults-with-behavioral-health-disorders-2/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/mental-health/publications/a-checklist-for-implementing-evidence-based-practices-and-programs-for-justice-involved-adults-with-behavioral-health-disorders-2/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/mental-health-projects/report-of-the-consensus-project/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/mental-health-projects/report-of-the-consensus-project/
http://www.michigan.gov/mentalhealth/0,4617,7-201-64984---,00.html
http://www1.nyc.gov/assets/criminaljustice/downloads/pdf/annual-report-complete.pdf
http://www1.nyc.gov/assets/criminaljustice/downloads/pdf/annual-report-complete.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/jail_diversion/PracticalAdviceOnJailDiversion.pdf
http://gainscenter.samhsa.gov/pdfs/jail_diversion/PracticalAdviceOnJailDiversion.pdf


 
6 

The Processing and Treatment of Mentally Ill Persons in the Criminal Justice System: A Scan of Practice 

and Background Analysis 

look at the national landscape of mental health care for people with mental illnesses in the criminal 

justice system, including a state-by-state scan of current practices that can be used for comparative 

purposes. (Urban Institute) 

 

Module 5: Create a process to track and report on progress 

Archived Webinar: Working with Data for Mental Health Court Practitioners, Part Two: Data Analysis and 

Communication 

Perspectives on data analysis, including considerations for doing cost-benefit analyses, and suggestions for 

generating data-based communications for internal and external audiences. (CSG Justice Center) 

CSG Justice Center Performance Measurement Resources 

Multiple resources on performance measurement to aid practitioners who struggle with how to measure 

the results and impact of their initiatives. 

Keeping Your Criminal Justice Coordinating Committee Going Strong 

Three key components that underpin teams that work especially well in developing effective solutions 

and information on the formation of the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council Network. (National 

Institute of Corrections) 

Measuring Performance of CJCCs 

An overview on measuring the performance of criminal justice coordinating councils, what is happening 

in local jurisdictions around performance measurement, and several specific examples of how to gain 

feedback from members. (The Justice Management Institute) 

State Substance Abuse Agencies, Program Management, and Data Utilization: Case Studies of Eleven 

States 

Results from case studies of 11 states demonstrate that the Single State Agencies (SSAs) for 

Substance Abuse Services have put forth significant effort to develop data-driven information systems that 

guide program management and policymaking decisions. (NASADAD) 

Story County, Iowa: Three Year Strategic Plan for MH/DD Services: Progress Report 

An example of how to measure progress after the implementation of a strategic plan. (Story County, Iowa) 

 

Page 111 of 134

http://webarchive.urban.org/UploadedPDF/2000173-The-Processing-and-Treatment-of-Mentally-Ill-Persons-in-the-Criminal-Justice-System.pdf
http://webarchive.urban.org/UploadedPDF/2000173-The-Processing-and-Treatment-of-Mentally-Ill-Persons-in-the-Criminal-Justice-System.pdf
http://csgjusticecenter.org/cp/webinars/webinar-archive-working-with-data-for-mental-health-court-practitioners-part-two-data-analysis-and-communication/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/cp/webinars/webinar-archive-working-with-data-for-mental-health-court-practitioners-part-two-data-analysis-and-communication/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/reentry/issue-areas/performance-measurement/
http://csgjusticecenter.org/reentry/issue-areas/performance-measurement/
http://www.pretrial.org/download/pji-reports/Keeping%20Your%20CJCC%20Going%20Strong%20-%20Jones%202013.pdf
http://www.pretrial.org/download/pji-reports/Keeping%20Your%20CJCC%20Going%20Strong%20-%20Jones%202013.pdf
http://69.195.124.207/~jmijust1/wp-content/uploads/2014/04/CJCCMiniGuide-Performance-Measures.pdf
http://69.195.124.207/~jmijust1/wp-content/uploads/2014/04/CJCCMiniGuide-Performance-Measures.pdf
http://nasadad.wpengine.com/2015/03/state-substance-abuse-agencies-program-management-and-data-utilization-case-studies-of-eleven-states/
http://nasadad.wpengine.com/2015/03/state-substance-abuse-agencies-program-management-and-data-utilization-case-studies-of-eleven-states/
http://www.storycountyiowa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/3423?fileID=2671
http://www.storycountyiowa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/3423?fileID=2671


BACKGROUND

The Mecklenburg County Jail is one of the largest mental health 

providers in the county and the state. Each day, at least 12 people 

with a history of mental illness are booked into the jail. Despite a 

decrease in jail bookings since 2010, the number of positive screens 

for a history of mental illness increased from four percent of all 

bookings in 2010 to 12 percent in 2014. The jail’s medical provider 

conducted 1,127 new patient visits for psychiatry in 2014 and 1,135 

follow-up psychiatry visits. While incarcerated, people with mental 

illnesses often display significantly negative reactions and trauma 

responses to being jailed. 

In 2005, a committee was convened to look at the jail crowding 

problem in Mecklenburg County. Leaders had started to see an in-

crease in their jail population and were considering building another 

jail when the sheriff, public defender, district attorney, police chief 

and Provided Services Organization came together to discuss other 

options and solutions. Over the course of 18 months, this committee 

worked with community partners to develop a flow chart, conduct 

point-in-time surveys and create a plan for reducing the number of 

people with mental illnesses in their jail by creating a continuum of 

diversion programs and practices. 

JAIL DIVERSION CONTINUUM 

Jail Diversion Clinician at Jail Central

Mental Health and Drug Treatment Courts

Clinician at Public Defender’s Office

MeckFUSE 

Crisis Intervention Teams

Mobile Crisis

Mecklenburg County has seen a dramatic reduction in its jail 

population, partially due to these efforts, but leaders understand 

there are more opportunities.  The original committee continues to 

meet quarterly to discuss solutions to new and continuing challeng-

es with this population. Future work may include a crisis stabilization 

center to better meet the needs of people with acute mental health 

treatment needs who do not require hospitalization or trips to the 

emergency room.

CRISIS INTERVENTION TEAM

The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) began 

in 2008 and has trained more than 800 law enforcement offi-

cers from every municipality in the county, as well as the Sheriff’s 

Department and Veteran’s Administration security officers.  The CIT 

program begins with a 40-hour law enforcement training focused 

on increased knowledge and de-escalation skill building, with the 

ultimate goal of diverting appropriate individuals to treatment and 

preventing harm to all parties involved.  The program has an inten-

tional focus on trauma-informed treatment and the involvement of 

peers and family members at each step of the program planning, 

facilitation and evaluation.  

The CIT program works by identifying individuals in mental health 

crises through calls for service regarding suicide, active mental 

health crisis, substance abuse crisis and developmental disabilities. 

CIT-trained officers are dispatched to respond to the scene for assis-

tance. Officers assess the situation and use de-escalation and other 

skills to determine the best course of action. As the CIT program is 

a community-based collaboration between law enforcement and 

mental health agencies, the next step is to connect individuals with 

appropriate services in coordination with the National Alliance on 

Mental Illness (NAMI) Charlotte and other local service providers. 

  

MENTAL HEALTH 
AND CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE
Case Study: Mecklenburg County, N.C.

POPULATION:

Metropolitan 
Charlotte

1,012,539*
JAIL BED 
CAPACITY:

2,600
AVERAGE 
DAILY JAIL 
POPULATION:

1,450

Page 112 of 134



   

MECKFUSE

In 2012, the jail diversion committee turned its attention to re-

searching effective supportive housing models for people with mental 

illnesses that would reduce recidivism and costs, and discovered the 

Corporation for Supportive Housing’s (CSH) Frequent User Systems 

Engagement, or FUSE, model. The committee engaged local housing 

organizations to participate in the planning effort for the initiative, 

including the Men’s Shelter of Charlotte and the Salvation Army Center 

of Hope. 

To develop the program, Mecklenburg County hired CSH to consult on 

the planning process.  The resulting Mecklenburg County FUSE initiative 

(MeckFUSE) is an interagency effort providing 45 new units of sup-

portive housing to individuals that cycle between the criminal justice 

system and homeless shelters in the county. It is a housing program for 

homeless men and women with health issues who have been frequent 

users of Mecklenburg’s jail, street camps, shelters and hospitals.

MECKFUSE PARTICIPANTS

• More than half of MeckFUSE participants have spent time in a jail 

or prison and most have spent years – if not decades – homeless 

prior to joining. 

• More than half of MeckFUSE participants are on medication 

 for a mental illness. 

To identify MeckFUSE tenants, a data match between the local 

Homeless Management Information System and the county jail 

identifies individuals who are repeatedly cycling between shelters and 

jail. The contracted service provider, Urban Ministry Center (UMC), 

uses the list to perform in-reach to the jail and local shelters, as well 

as to those living on the street. Potential participants are assessed for 

behavioral health conditions, a requirement for eligibility. Once eligible, 

tenants are quickly housed in one of a number of units UMC has worked 

with local landlords to secure. Tenants receive voluntary wraparound 

support services. All housing and services are paid for through county 

diversion funds at a cost of about $900,000 per year. Since it began 

operating, the program has placed 57 clients in housing. Mecklenburg 

County has become a model of effective use of the FUSE Blueprint as a 

framework for program planning and implementation, and received the 

CSH Project of the Year award in 2014. 

PRELIMINARY OUTCOMES 

 The University of North Carolina at Charlotte has been contracted to 

evaluate MeckFUSE over a three-year period. Preliminary findings have 

shown that:  

• MeckFUSE has been able to retain 88 percent of clients over an 

18-month period 

• Clients report better health ratings, increased access to services 

and fewer self-reported arrests/jail stays than the year prior to their 

participation 

• MeckFUSE has been able to reduce cost burden to health care 

systems: the average annual bill pre-MeckFUSE was $4,358 (median: 

$1,600) compared to the average bill after entry into MeckFUSE at 

$1,261 (median: $819) 

• The average number of hospital visits for MeckFUSE participants fell 

from 10 per year to two.

Mecklenburg County provided three years of funding for MeckFUSE 

through its general fund for a total cost of about $3,000,000. A small 

portion of this money went to CSH for technical assistance and to 

UNC-Charlotte for evaluation. The majority of the funding goes directly 

to UMC for services and rental subsidies.  MeckFUSE leadership antic-

ipates continued funding for the program after the three-year period, 

pending continued positive results. 

RESOURCES 
Sarah M. Greene, LCSW
Program Administrator of Trauma & Justice Partnerships 
Sarah.Greene@mecklenburgcountync.gov
980-314-8620   

*Mecklenburg County, North Carolina. U.S. Census Bureau. 
Available at: http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/37/37119.html. 
Accessed June 19, 2015.

25 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, NW 
SUITE 500, WASHINGTON, DC 20001

202.393.6226  FAX 202.393.2630 
www.naco.org

For more information about this publication or NACo’s mental illness and jails project, please contact Nastassia Walsh, NACo Program Manager, at nwalsh@naco.org or 202.942.4289

fb.com/NACoDC    twitter.com/NACoTweets
 youtube.com/NACoVideo    linkedin.com/in/NACoDC

Page 113 of 134



HOARD ( )l ( ( JMMISSIONI RS

P. MICIIM I \W LAIN
^^ ^^^ ^ ( <umt\ Man.iuci
^^ ^ ^^ ^

SANDRA |. DUCKW \l I

Vii c Chairman

\1K I IAD RENSI IAW

ANGEI AVVOi )TEN

( lerk lo the Board

GARRY W. MEIGGS * ^ |OHN S. MORRISON

cla^nwdh,t?gs CAMDENCOUNTY
new energy, new vision.

Resolution No. 2015-08-01

"Stepping Up Initiative to

Reduce the Number of People with Mental Illnesses in Jails"

WHEREAS, counties routinely provide treatment services to the estimated 2 million people
with serious mental illnesses hooked into jails each year; and,

WHEREAS, prevalence rates of serious mental illnesses in confinement facilities are three to six
times higher than for the general population, with statistics showing that almost 13% of North
Carolina's prison population requires some type of intervention due to mental health issues; and,

WHEREAS, almost three-quarters oi' adults with serious mental illnesses in jails have co-
occurring substance use disorders; and,

WHEREAS, adults with mental illnesses tend to stay longer in jail and upon release are at a
higher risk, of recidivism than people without these disorders; and.

WHEREAS, county jails spend two to three times more on adults with mental illnesses that
require interventions compared to those without these treatment needs; and,

WHEREAS, without the appropriate treatment and services, people with mental illnesses can
continue to cycle through the criminal justice system, often resulting in tragic outcomes for these
individuals, their families, and their communities; and.

WHEREAS, county jails are generally an unsafe environment for those with mental health
treatment needs; and.

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners has undertaken a serious
effort to address the local service needs of those with mental illnesses through the appointment
of a special Task Force; and.

WHEREAS. Camden County, like all counties, takes pride in our responsibility to protect and
enhance the health, welfare and safety of our residents in efficient, safe, and socially just ways;
and.

WHEREAS, through the Stepping Dp Initiative, the National Association of Counties, the
Council of State Governments Justice Center and the American Psychiatric Foundation are
encouraging counties to reduce the number of people with mental illnesses in county jails; and.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners. Camden County,

1. That the Board oi' Commissioners does hereby sign on to the Call to Action to reduce
the number o\' people with mental illnesses in our county jail and commits to sharing

P.O.Box 190 ♦ i 30 East Hwy 158 ♦ Camden, NC 27921 ♦ Phone (252) $38-6363 ♦ Fax (252) 131-7831
______________ www.camdencountync.gov ———^^——

Page 114 of 134



lessons learned with other counties in North Carolina and across the country to support
the Stepping Up Initiative; and

2. That the Board of Commissioners will utilize resources available through the Stepping
Up Initiative and other resources provided by the Council of State Governments Justice
Center to convene a diverse team of leaders and decision makers from multiple agencies
who are committed to safely reducing the number of people with mental illnesses in jails;
and,

3. That this team will utilize the comprehensive resources available through the Stepping
Up Initiative to develop a plan to reduce the number of people with mental illness in the
county jail for 2016-2020, consistent with the Council of State Governments Justice
Center report and recommendations, to be presented to the Board of Commissioners at its
first meeting in December 2015.

PASSED AND APPROVED in this day of , 2015.

ATTEST:

Clerk to the Board Chairman of CountyCommissioners

Page 115 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.I 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3
rd

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (9 Pages) 

Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Proposed Amendment to 

Parks & Recreation and Camden County 

Schools Memorandum of Understanding 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

The attached Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Parks & 

Recreation and Camden County Public Schools was recently approved on 

July 6, 2015.  Since that time, the Parks & Recreation Director has advised 

the County Manager that an old provision under Section IV of the MOU 

requires that all recognized sport organization participants must reside in 

either Camden County or Pasquotank County. 

 

The Parks & Recreation Director further advised that a few Sharks Football 

players that have recently completed registration and properly submitted 

their roster information physically reside in Currituck County.  The County 

Manager, in consultation with the Parks & Recreation Director and County 

Attorney, believe that this previous requirement for either Camden or 

Pasquotank residency was merely a result of our prior relationship with 

Pasquotank County for the joint provision of recreational programming.  It 

was also recommended that the existing MOU under Section IV be amended 

to correct this outdated requirement and include Currituck County residents 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 116 of 134



as eligible to participate under the recognized sport organization 

classification. 
 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The County Manager recommends that the Board of Commissioners amend 

Section IV of the current MOU to include Currituck County residency as 

eligible to participate under the provisions of recognized sport organizations. 

Page 117 of 134



 

 1 

Camden County Parks & Recreation and Camden County Schools 

 

Memorandum of Understanding 
 

I.  Purpose 

 

This document embodies the policies and procedures which govern facility use and users 

in order to insure optimal maintenance of athletic fields and other recreational facilities, 

owned by Camden County and by the Camden County Board of Education (BOE) and 

to assure fair and efficient access to those facilities. 

 

The primary use of county recreation areas and facilities is for public recreation activities.  

The primary uses of school recreational facilities are (a) during school hours for school use 

exclusively (generally 8:30 a.m. to 5:35 p.m. on days school is in session and (b) during 

non-school hours, and on non-school days, for school and community use.   

 

Factors to be considered in determining permission for use, as well as permission for type 

of use, are:  current capital improvements or rehabilitation, regular maintenance, facility 

condition, extent of wear and tear to be caused by use, coordination of uses, efficient 

scheduling, location of facility, and availability of services at a facility. 

 

All parties must comply with Federal and State anti-discrimination laws.  All facility users 

shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws; such user shall pay all the 

costs, expenses, fines, penalties, and damages which may be imposed upon the owner 

of the property by reason of, or arising out of, the user’s failure to fully and promptly 

comply with all legal requirements and observe all the provisions of this policy. 

 

II. List of Facilities Governed 

 

The outdoor athletic fields and outdoor and indoor facilities within Camden County are 

legally controlled as follows: 

 

 A.  Board of Education Athletic Fields and Recreational Facilities 

 

 School     Field/Facility 

 

 Grandy Primary/Intermediate  Gymnasium 

 

 Camden County Middle School Baseball Field 

      Basketball Courts (outdoor) 

      Football/Soccer Field 

      Gymnasium 

      Softball Field 

 

 Camden County High School  Baseball Field 

      Football Field 

      Gymnasium 

      Softball Field (Central Office    

      Complex) 

 

  

 

Page 118 of 134



 

 2 

B.  Camden County Recreation Areas 

 

 Locations     Field/Facility 

  

 Camden Community Park  Baseball/Softball Field 1 

      Baseball/Softball Field 2 

      Baseball/Softball Field 3 

      Baseball/Softball Field 4 

      Baseball/Softball Field 5 

      Baseball/Softball Field 6 

      Baseball/Softball Field 7 

      Basketball Court (outdoor) 

      Football/Soccer (existing) 

      Football/Soccer (expansion) 

      Pavilion 

      Open Space 

      Tennis Court 

      Track and Field 

      Walking Trail 

 

 Great Dismal Swamp   Walking/Biking Trail 

 

III.  Priority of Use by Category 

 

  Permits for field/facility use are issued by category in which the   

  organization or event is placed.  Category I user/event has priority over  

  Category II and lower user/event.  Within a category; Subcategory A has  

  a priority over B, B over C, etc.  If there is a dispute within a category, the  

  facility representative will decide priority. 

 

 Category I Permit Use 

 

  BOE Public School Activities for grades Pre-K – 12 

  These activities include physical education and academic activities,  

  Camden County Schools' extra-curricular and co-curricular programs as  

  well as school  parent/teacher athletic organization. 

 

 Category II Permit Use 

 

 A.   Parks and Recreation Directly Sponsored Activities 

  These activities include programs run by the Recreation Department, such 

  as day  camps, after school programs, program offerings and special  

  events. 

 

 B. Recognized sports organizations comprised of 100% Camden County  

  Participants 

 

 C. Recognized sports organization comprised of highest number of Camden  

  County Participants 

 

  

  

Page 119 of 134



 

 3 

D. Recognized Sports Organizations 

 

The following volunteer sports organizations are recognized by Camden 

County Parks and Recreation Department, according to the rules noted 

below: 

 

  Camden Babe Ruth Association, Inc. 

  Shiloh Sharks Inc. 

 

E. A written roster, copy of the registration forms and proof of insurance 

(Section IV (A) below) must be submitted annually at the time of 

application to the issuing entity.  No permits will be issued unless this 

criterion is met. 

 

 

 Category III Permits 

 

 A. Camden County Service Agencies/Community Partners 

These groups include Camden 4-H, Boy Scouts and Girl Scouts.  

 

B. Other volunteer sports organizations requesting use of field space and/or 

facilities.  Such volunteer sports organizations must also provide to the 

Camden County Parks and Recreation Department (and Camden 

County Board of Education when requesting use of School fields and/or 

facilities) written rosters, copies of registration forms, and proof of 

insurance as required in Section IV (A). 

 

   

 

Category IV Permits 

 

 A. Private Group Field/Facility Requests 

  These groups are made up of citizens of Camden County, or businesses  

  based in Camden County, who request the use of facilities on an   

  occasional basis when space is available. 

 

 B. Privately Operated Programs  

Camden County Parks and Recreation Department and Board of 

Education facilities will not be made available for organizations, entities, 

individuals or groups for the purpose of providing recreational services to 

youth or adults if the event to be operated is on a for-profit basis. 

 

NOTE:  All “Category II through IV permits will provide the notice 

that a program carried on by a “Category I” organization can 

claim priority in unusual circumstances.  The Parks & Recreation 

Department and Camden County Board of Education reserve the 

right to request written copies of all team rosters, and registration 

forms complete with names, addresses, places of employment 

and insurance requirements. 

 

  

Page 120 of 134



 

 4 

IV.   Procedure and Criteria for Parks and Recreation Recognized Status 

 

A. A county organization, whose primary function is to provide recreational 

activities within the community, may seek to obtain recognized status with the 

Recreation Department and where applicable Camden County Board of 

Education (BOE) by satisfactorily fulfilling the following requirements: 

 

o A demonstrated need for providing the activity is evidenced and 

capacity/field space exists to meet that need. 

o Activity is provided strictly on a non-profit basis.  In support of such, each 

organization shall provide written documentation in the form of either a 

Determination Letter issued by the Internal Revenue Service and a copy 

of its non-profit corporation Articles of Incorporation filed with the 

Corporations Division of the Secretary of State’s Office. 

o All participants must reside in either Camden County, Currituck County or 

Pasquotank County. 

o All participants, including instructors, coaches, officials and players are 

covered under a liability and accident insurance plan approved by the 

Recreation Department and by the Camden County Board of Education 

or its designee where Camden County School facilities are requested.  

The approved insurance plan shall list the County, and Camden County 

Board of Education where School facilities are used, as additional co-

insured and a copy will be maintained on file with the Recreation 

Department and Camden County Board of Education where applicable.  

The amounts of such insurance shall not be less than ONE MILLION 

DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) bodily injury each occurrence/aggregate and 

ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) property damage each 

occurrence/aggregate or ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) bodily injury 

and property damage combined single limits each 

occurrence/aggregate.  Further, such policy shall provide that any 

termination, cancellation, or reduction in coverage shall immediately be 

reported by the insurer to the County. 

o All coaches training, screening and certification programs, which are 

required by organizations affiliation, are properly enforced. 

o The organization is a member of, or affiliated with a local, state, regional 

or national organization recognized as such, which provides rules and 

regulations governing play and organization requirements. 

B. If an organization, other than those listed, seeks recognized status, it must 

complete the required form and explain its compliance with the above 

criteria.  The organization must be approved by the Recreation Department, 

Recreation Advisory Board, BOE, and Board of Commissioners (BOC). 

 

V.  Allocation of Fields and Facilities 

 

 A.   Supervision 

 

  The Camden County Schools’ Athletic Director and the Parks and   

  Recreation Coordinator will collaborate, coordinate and schedule the  

  allocation of the fields and facility for Category 1 – 2 uses. 

 

  The primary responsibility of Camden County Schools’ Athletic Director will 

  be to oversee the athletic facilities of the schools and coordinate the  

Page 121 of 134



 

 5 

  allocation of such with their respective principal and the County Parks  

  and Recreation Coordinator.  The primary responsibility of the Parks and  

  Recreation Coordinator will be to oversee the County’s park facilities and  

  will coordinate with the School System’s Athletic Director and principal.  All 

  applicable user groups will receive a copy of the Facilities Use Application 

  and fee schedule.  A copy will be posted on the Parks and Recreation  

  Department website and a hard copy will be made available to any  

  resident who requests one from the Parks and Recreation Department  

  and/or at the school the request is being made.  It is recognized that  

  each group may further subdivide the time among its entity; conflicts  

  among such teams and groups are not addressed by this policy.    

  For users other than Category 1 and 2, a formal application and permit  

  are required signed by both the County Parks Director and the County’s  

  Schools’ Athletic Director and Principal. 

 

 B. Priority Assignment 

 

  Priority of assignment within Category 3/4 permits will be granted   

  equitably to applicants who have submitted all required information and  

  paperwork on dates of assignment.  Requests for the same facility at the  

  same time will be scheduled on a first come/first serve basis. 

 

Certain field users maintain an “affiliation” with recognized organizations. 

Each recognized organization may determine whether it will provide fields 

from its allotted time to affiliated programs.  Affiliated users may not gain 

a priority over other recognized organizations by virtue of such affiliation. 

 

  Any assigned user must notify the Recreation Coordinator and/or Athletic  

  Director of expected non-use of a particular athletic facility, at a   

  particular time.  Every  effort should be made to do so at least seven (7)  

  calendar days in advance.  This non-use does not apply to weather  

  cancellations. 

 

  Notes Concerning Scheduling 

 

  Scheduling assignments will be made based upon the categories   

  established in  section III above.   

 

 C. Game Delays 

 

  CCHS, CCMS and Camden youth sports activities are often subject to  

  delays due to late arriving opponents and/or officials, or emergencies.  In  

  such cases, use may extend beyond the normal time.  Likewise, overtime  

  and extra innings can require additional time.  Other users take their  

  starting time subject to CCHS, CCMS sports’ right to complete their  

  games.   

 

 D. Makeup Schedule 

 

 Under unusual circumstances, CCHS and CCMS sports, including makeup  

 games, have the right to bump a previously scheduled activity.  Every  

 effort should be made to limit such late rescheduling.  Other school 

Page 122 of 134



 

 6 

 system use (for example, elementary school fairs, campouts, 

 intramurals, etc.) are known well in  advance and have priority provided 

 at least 30 days notice is given of the event.  Parks and Recreation

 Director and Athletic Director will make every effort to notify

 affected users as soon as possible of all cancellations. 

 

 E. Field Closings Due to Weather 

 

  All users of athletic fields are subject to the determination of field playing  

  conditions on a daily basis.  The school system Athletic Director will make  

  all decisions concerning CCHS and CCMS athletic events.  For all other  

  user groups, determination is made on week-days at 2 pm by the   

  Recreation Coordinator, or his designee, for both Camden County and  

  BOE fields; the Recreation Coordinator will consult with the school system  

  Athletic Director or principal  concerning the impact upon CCHS and  

  CCMS athletics and any special consideration to be given.  Generally, all  

  users are subject to the same standard for closure.  Nevertheless,   

  determination will be made on a field-by-field basis, as well as a user-by- 

  user basis where conditions are such that some fields may be playable  

  while others are not, and some users may do less damage by use than  

  others.  At later times and weekends, each organization is required to  

  close its fields if injury may result to participants or if damage to the  

  playing surface, affecting not only its continued use by this user but also  

  use by others in this season and in the following season, will occur.  If in  

  doubt, the field will be closed.  Users must notify the Recreation   

  Coordinator, or designee, if they have closed the field so other users  

  questioning whether to close their fields can be so advised. 

 

  

 

F. Athletic Camps/Clinics 

 

  This category will include instructional activities that extend beyond one  

  day and for which a separate fee or tuition is charged.  Camps must be  

  open to all youth regardless of skill level.  Sports camps will be limited to  

  one week (five days)  duration for any given age group or similar   

  category (gender, ability, etc.).  Camps may be scheduled at Camden  

  County and BOE facilities.  All sports camps are limited to two camps per  

  organization each year.  Organizations may  only conduct programs  

  within their sport.  All camps, no matter on which facility, must be   

  scheduled through the Parks and Recreation Director and comply with  

  facility owners other requirements.  This regulation only applies to non- 

  school  sponsored activities. 

 

 G. Special Events 

 

  Every effort should be made to accommodate such events (for example,  

  sports  tournaments, parades, fireworks, festivals, Relay for Life, etc.) no  

  matter what priority is assigned.  Exceptions to stated policy may be  

  granted for such special events. 

 

  

Page 123 of 134



 

 7 

VI. Field Modification 

 

 Modifications are prohibited unless expressly authorized in writing by the owner.  

 Any substantial proposed changes to fields or parks should be submitted to the 

 school system’s Athletic Director, principal and Parks and Recreation Director to 

 consider the impact upon facility use.  Those requested changes, along with a 

 recommendation, will then be forwarded to the BOE, and or BOC for 

 consideration. 

 

  This would include the development of active recreation areas from  

  property not currently used for this purpose.  It would include the   

  installation of fences,  structures, scoreboards, permanent stands and  

  permanent lighting. 

 

  It would not include the replacement of any current structure (an old  

  backstop with a new one of roughly the same size) or the repaid or  

  replacement of existing fencing.  These types of items will be the   

  responsibility of the Recreation Coordinator, Athletic Director, or a   

  designee. 

 

  The placement location of all movable items (portable stands, port-a- 

  johns,  soccer goals, batting cages, blocking sleds, temporary fencing,  

  etc.) will be the responsibility of the Recreation Coordinator, Athletic  

  Director, or a designee.  They may delegate seasonal authority to co- 

  sponsored organizations regarding the management of these items. 

 

VII. Facility Use Rules and Regulations 

 

 A. Use of any active recreation area by a group of more than ten (10)  

  participants is authorized by permit only. 

 

 B. Please have a copy of the permit with you at all times while on the field or 

  at the facility. 

 

 C. User groups may not give their permitted time to another group.  All  

  changes must be made through the Recreation Coordinator, Athletic  

  Director, or a designee. 

 

 D. Use of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances of any kind, use of  

  profane, loud, threatening, insulting, indecent and abusive language is  

  prohibited. 

 

 E. Any user who abuses the fields/facilities shall have the privilege revoked,  

  pay for any damages and/or fees incurred and may have future requests  

  denied.  The fields/facilities will be carefully monitored for proper usage. 

 

 F. The Parks and Recreation Coordinator, Athletic Director, School   

  administrator reserves the right to cancel or restrict the use of fields and  

  facilities by any user group should we determine it is in the best interest of  

  the county, schools, citizens of the county, or our fields and facilities. 

 

Page 124 of 134



 

 8 

 G. Use of amplifiers for music, announcements or otherwise is not permitted  

  to be unreasonably loud.  The limit to such volume must be so that it is  

  barely audible 30 yards from the limits of the playing area.  No   

  loudspeaker use is permitted before 8:00 a.m. 

 

 H. Athletic fields/facilities may not be used before 8:00 a.m. or after dusk,  

  except where lights are utilized.  Practices and games should be   

  scheduled to end by 10:00 pm with the lights to be turned off as soon as  

  clean up and pick up of participants allow. 

 

 I. Use of portable lighting by any group shall require an on-site meeting at  

  the beginning of every season to determine the placement of the   

  portable lights.  Those locations shall be recorded by the Parks and  

  Recreational Coordinator and the user group.  It will be the User Groups  

  responsibility to ensure the lights are maintained in the correct locations.   

  Every effort shall be made that the lights used will only light the playing  

  surface and not exceed the field area. 

 

 J. All trash must be placed in proper receptacles.  Users are expected to  

  leave the facility in the same condition in which it was found, or better. 

 

 K. Only temporary signs or banners may be posted during events and must  

  be removed at the conclusion of the use of the facility. 

 

 L. No one shall drive a motorized vehicle of any kind onto recreational fields. 

 

 M. Parking is allowed in designated areas only.  It is the responsibility of the  

  user group to enforce all parking regulations and to make sure vehicles  

  are parked properly. 

 

 N. No concession privilege will be extended by virtue of facility use.    

  Concession privileges must have the approval of the Parks and   

  Recreation Coordinator and Athletic Director. 

 

 O. There will be no open fires on Camden County and BOE property. 

 

 P. Warm-ups for the next scheduled event must be performed so as not to  

  interfere with existing event and so as not to endanger the welfare of all  

  participants, spectators and facilities. 

 

 Q. All managers, coaches, or persons in charge of a group using the fields  

  will be responsible for the conduct of all participants, spectators and  

  others connected with the activity, including visiting teams and   

  opponents.  It is the responsibility of the user group to inform all parents,  

  spectators, and coaches of the field/facility rules. 

 

 R. In the event of problems with the equipment or facilities, the Recreation  

  Coordinator, and or Athletic Director, or designees must be contacted  

  immediately. 

 

 S. No public urination or defecation.  Any user group that desires a   

  “port-o-john” at a site must gain approval from the Park and   

Page 125 of 134



 

 9 

  Recreational/Athletic Director for it.  They will also be responsible   

  for the site location and screening of the facility if appropriate. 

 

 T.  Clothes must be changed in rest rooms and/or locker rooms only. 

 

 U. No first aid or medical supplies are available at fields; they should   

  be provided by the user group. The user must have     

  communication for emergency situations or law enforcement. 

 

 V. No animals except those which are trained to assist the disabled   

  will be allowed on or inside Camden County and BOE property. 

 

VIII. Memorandum Renewal/Amendment 

 

This memorandum of understanding will be renewed annually at the joint 

meeting between the Camden County Board of Education and Camden County 

Board of Commissioners.  If either party wishes to change this policy they must 

give written notification to the other party 30 days prior to this date.  

Amendments to this memorandum require written approval by both parties. 

 

 

______________________________   Date:  _________________ 

P. Michael McLain, Chair 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

______________________________   Date:  _________________ 

Christian Overton, Chair 

Camden County Board of Education 

 

 

______________________________   Date:  _________________ 

Melvin Hawkins 

Superintendent of Schools 

 

 

______________________________   Date:  _________________ 

Michael R. Renshaw 

County Manager 

 

 

Page 126 of 134



 

 

Camden County 

 South Camden Water & Sewer District  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number 5.A 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:   8/3/15 

Attachments:   1 (1 Pages) 

Submitted By: David Credle, Public Works 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Monthly Update to the Board 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Report to the Board about the work orders, locates and general 

maintenance water / sewer items for the month of July. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Information only. 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 127 of 134



AUTOMOTIVE

INDUSTRIAL

• GAS TANKS

HEAT EXCHANGER

GLENROCK RADIATOR SERVICE, INC
5552 VIRGINIA BEACH BLVD. NORFOLK, VIRGINIA 23502

Phone 461-8100

Customer's
Order No.

Name ^n^

Add ress

Date

0^3 Csi <•> t^~\r
^j4 s

r

SOLD BY CASH CO.D. CHARGE ON ACCT. MDSE. RETD. PAID OUT

DESCRIPTION

i^ ^<tjrr-:^[ C&&L
/v \^KJ p^<\ f-5^

(757)461-8100

GLENROCK RADIATOR SERU
5552 UIRGIHIA BEACH BLU
NORFOLK, UA 235022418

TERHIHAL ID: 803133432
MERCHAHT tt: 345346988883

UISA
*txxxxxxxxxxxx7433
SALE
BATCH: 000757 INUQICE: 057436
DATE: JUL 20, 15 TIHE: 15:13
SQ: 001 AUTH Hi

TOTAL $8268.00

CUSTOMER COPY

All claims and returned goods MUST be accompanied by this bill.

35461 Received
By

TAX

TOTAL

EN-GS-58 SIGNATURE PRTG & GRAPHICS CO INC NORFOLK VA 23502 218588-BR

AMOUNT

l%co ^>o

<¥?JM
KM oo

Page 128 of 134



Bay Diesel Corporation SALES ESTIMATE

DATE: QUOTED BY:

COMPANY: QUOTE NUMBER:

ATTN:

PHONE:

FAX: PAGE 1 OF 1

E-MAIL:

Inspection of radiator revealed damage to radiator core. Estimated 2 days to perform disconnects on bad 

radiator, make ready for am crane usage (removal/replacement), coolant and multiple hose replacements. Once

Qty

50

3

1

1

40

1

Total

Environmental Fees

1.) Bay Diesel Terms & Conditions apply.  See attached  or visit Freight

www.baydiesel.com for details.

2.) Payment terms are Net 30 with an open account or by prepayment.

3.) Quotation does not include the cost of repairing hidden damage.  

A separate estimate will be provided for additional repairs. Approved By

4.) This equipment will be out of service during repair.

5.) A cancellation or restock penalty will apply to all special order parts. Date

Purchase Order Number

-                         

-                         

-                         

MCH07022015A

EQUIPMENT:  600 Kw Generac SN: 2068180

LOCATED AT: 103 Water Plant Dr. Camden, Nc 27921

SCOPE OF WORK: Remove & replace radiator

Valid for 30 Days

225.00                   

unit is reconnected, coolant will be added and unit test ran to ensure operation and is leak free.

Part Number Description Unit Price Extended

Coolant 50/50 8.43                         337.20                   

Radiator 39,437.50                39,437.50              

Labor 95.00                       4,750.00                

Truck 75.00                       

-                         

Hoses, cap 802.12                     802.12                   

-                         

-                         

-                         

Crane rental 1 day 975.20                     975.20                   

-                         

-                         

Mike HendersonJuly 2, 2015

Camden County WTP

Tommy

(252) 335-1216

tsawyer@camdencountync.gov

-                         

-                         

GRAND TOTAL 47,526.02$         

700 Semmes Avenue3736 Cook Boulevard

NOTES AND EXCEPTIONS

-                         

-                         

46,527.02              

3026 Wentworth Avenue NW

                   800.00 

Chesapeake, Virginia 23323

(757) 485-0075

(757) 485-0232 Fax

Richmond, Virginia 23224

(804) 230-3495

(804) 230-3497 Fax

Roanoke, Virginia 24012

(540) 613-0921

(540) 301-3602 Fax

-                         

-                         

199.00                   

-                         

-                         

-                         

-                         

Page 129 of 134



 

3736 Cook Boulevard                                                                                                                                                          700 Semmes Avenue 
Chesapeake, VA   23323-1604                                                                                                   Richmond, VA   23224 
(757) 485-0075                                                                     800-215-4005                                                                                  (804) 230-3495 
(757) 485-0232 FAX                                                                                                                                                            (804) 230-3497 FAX 

BAY DIESEL CORPORATION  

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

 Our contracts for repairs, parts, new equipment sales and services (“Work”) are entered into by us solely 
on the basis of the limited liabilities set forth herein.  When accepted, our proposal for Work and these terms and 
conditions shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties.  We expressly reject any terms and conditions 
proposed by the Customer unless accepted in writing and executed by an officer of Bay Diesel. 
 
 If this project is for the purchase of new equipment, Bay Diesel is quoting this project as a material 
supplier only and is, therefore, exempt from provisions in the contract documents, if any, pertaining to 
subcontractor bonds and retainages.  The equipment and services listed in this quotation are being offered as our 
interpretation of the specification and application requirements.  Bay Diesel makes no guaranty or warranty of the 
approximate available date of new equipment delivery.  Any such date specified is merely an estimated date of 
shipment or delivery received from the manufacturer.  Performance by Bay Diesel shall be subject to “Force 
Majeure” which term is hereby declared to include all circumstances beyond the direct and immediate control of 
Bay Diesel. 
 
 Bay Diesel warrants its workmanship and materials to be free from defects for sixty (60) days from 
completion or termination of the Work for any reason.  For new equipment purchases, Bay Diesel will use its 
efforts to pass on to Customer all manufacturers’ warranties applicable to the Work.  In the event of defective 
workmanship or materials, Customer must notify Bay Diesel immediately and give Bay Diesel representatives the 
opportunity to inspect the defect before it is repaired.  Our sole obligation and Customer’s sole remedy will be the 
repair or replacement of the defect.  For warranty repairs performed by Bay Diesel, Customer shall be responsible 
for travel time and expenses to and from the location where the work is to be performed.  Bay Diesel shall not, in 
any event, be liable for consequential, incidental or contingent damages, including, but not limited to, lost 
revenues, lost profits, delay, demurrage, or lost opportunities.  In no event shall our aggregate liability exceed 
$100,000 or the Work price, whichever is less. 
 
 The foregoing is exclusive and in lieu of all other warranties and representations, whether statutory, 
expressed or implied, including, but not limited to, warranties of merchantability, fitness for any particular 
purpose and workmanlike service. 
 
 Should our account not be paid when due, a service and handling charge of 2% per month shall be added.  
Customer agrees to pay all costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.  If there is a building or vessel 
involved, Bay Diesel is also relying on the credit of the building or vessel and does not waive its lien. 
 
 Different terms or more extensive liability will be accepted if an agreement in writing is executed by Bay 
Diesel and Customer prior to commencement of the Work, and the price for the Work is adjusted to reflect the 
additional risk and insurance exposure. 
 
 Any dispute related to our Work shall be litigated either in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District 
of Virginia, Norfolk Division, or the Circuit Court for the City of Norfolk, Virginia.  No litigation may be 

initiated by Customer more than one (1) year after completion or cessation of the Work. 
 
(REV 3/16/07) 

Page 130 of 134



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Item Number:   10 

 

INFORMATION 

 

Meeting Date:   August 3
rd

, 2015  

Attachments:    

Submitted By: Various Department Heads 
 

 

ITEM TITLE:   INFORMATION 
 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

A. Library Monthly Report - July   

B. Library Annual Report – FY 14-15   

C. Industrial Commission   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Information Only 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 131 of 134



Camden County Public Library 

July 1-27 Statistics 

 
 

 Visitor Count: 2331 

 Days/Hours Open: 22/242  

 # Items in Collection:  11,880 (Opening Day Collection # Items = 4,755) 

 Total Check Outs/Renewals: 3,999 

 Library Card Holders: 2,198 

 Computer/ Wireless Use: 865/45 

 Juvenile Programs : 13 programs /260 attendance 

 Adult Programs :  3 programs / 11 attendance 

 Meeting Room:  8 reservations / 63 attendance 

 
 

Page 132 of 134



Pasq
FY 2014-2015 Camden Corolla Currituck Hatteras KDH Manteo Moyock Pasq. Bkmb ALL

check outs 30,398 8,976 34,651 18,407 98,780 47,672 44,808 87,314 3,838

renewals 7,421 1,008 6,596 4,609 22,037 8,230 7,569 15,529 1,340

37,819 9,984 41,247 23,016 120,817 55,902 52,377 102,843 5,178 449,183

% of total circulation

1 YEAR CHANGE IN

CIRC

2 YEAR CHANGE IN

CIRC

3 YEAR CHANGE IN

CIRC

8.42% 2.22% 9.18% 5.12% 26.90% 12.45%

Camden Corolla Currituck Hatteras

38.39% -11.43% -3.35% -6.61%

new -8.63% -13.44% -8.50%

new -5.21% -27.76% -15.49%

KDH Manteo

-3.72% 2.62%

-11.24% -0.10%

-14.39% -3.44%

11.66% 22.90% 1.15%

Moyock Pasq
Pasq
Bkmb ALL

-11.05% -9.16% 46.40% 3.45%

-7.40% -22.33% -32.37% -4.92%

-6.81% -21.64% -35.42% -8.21%

Page 133 of 134



July 10, 2015 

 

Industrial Commission Focuses on Combating Fraud;  

Collects Nearly $1 Million for Public Schools 

 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

 

Raleigh, N.C. - Nearly $1 million dollars in civil penalties from North Carolina businesses that operate 

without required workers’ compensation insurance coverage was collected by the state Industrial 

Commission’s Fraud and Compliance team during the past fiscal year. The proceeds from these penalties 

go to a state fund used exclusively for maintaining the public school system. 

 

In fiscal year 2014-2015, the Commission collected $992,965 in civil penalties.  This is nearly triple the 

amount collected in fiscal year 2013-2014, and a five-fold increase from fiscal year 2012-2013 

collections.  The Commission collected an additional $311,630 in non-fraud penalties in fiscal year 2014-

2015 that will also go to public schools. 

 

“Unlawful employers that fail to provide required workers’ compensation insurance coverage are a drain 

on North Carolina’s legitimate businesses, health care providers, and taxpayers,” said Industrial 

Commission Chairman Andrew T. Heath. “The Industrial Commission’s efforts to bring businesses into 

compliance are reflective of Governor McCrory’s commitment to protecting North Carolina’s workforce 

and business community.” 

 

Chairman Heath credited the Commission’s hard-working Compliance and Fraud Investigative Division 

staff, as well as the Commission’s fraud alerting tool, the Noncompliant Employer Targeting System 

(NETS), with enabling the Commission to quickly identify employers that are required by law to maintain 

a valid workers’ compensation insurance policy, but have failed to do so.  NETS, created in conjunction 

with the Government Data Analytics Center (GDAC) and SAS Institute Inc., uses data from various state 

agencies to create a list of potentially noncompliant businesses which the Commission then reviews.   

 

When a noncompliant employer is identified, the Commission takes both corrective and punitive 

measures.  Under North Carolina law, noncompliant businesses may be assessed a civil penalty and 

charged criminally for failing to carry workers’ compensation insurance.  The Commission conducts 

proactive, on-site enforcement operations on businesses identified by NETS as being uninsured despite 

having past contact with the Commission.  As a result of these operations, 101 misdemeanor charges were 

filed in fiscal year 2014-2015 following enforcement operations in Durham, Guilford, Mecklenburg, Pitt, 

and Wake counties.  

 

“While I am pleased with our progress in cracking down on employer non-compliance, the Commission 

will continue its intensive enforcement initiatives until every business meets its obligations under the 

Workers’ Compensation Act,” said Chairman Heath.  “Unethical and illegitimate business owners will 

find no safe harbor here in North Carolina.”    

 

 

Contact:  Kim Genardo 

               Communications Director 

               North Carolina Department of Commerce 

               (919)733-3438 

 

 

 

Page 134 of 134



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 1 

Regular Meeting  2 

April 20th, 2015 3 

6:00 P.M. - Closed Session 4 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 5 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 6 

Camden, North Carolina 7 

 8 

MINUTES 9 

 10 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held 11 

on April 20th, 2015 in the historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  The 12 

following Commissioners were present: 13 

 14 

Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 15 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White 16 

 17 

 18 

Also attending were County Manager Michael Renshaw, and Clerk to the Board 19 

Angela L. Wooten.  Present for purposes of making a presentation(s) or providing 20 

supporting information for agenda items were the following persons:  Register of 21 

Deeds Tammy Krauss, Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson, Public Works Director 22 

David Credle. 23 

 24 

Call To Order 25 

 26 

Chairman Michael McLain called to order the April 20th, 2015 meeting of the 27 

Camden County Board of Commissioners at 6:02 PM. 28 

 29 

 30 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to go into a Closed Session at 6:03 PM. 31 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 32 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 33 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 34 

voting. 35 

 36 

Closed Session 37 

 Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) – Potential Litigation 38 

 Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(5) – Contract Negotiations 39 

 Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) – Personnel 40 

Attachment A - 1



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 41 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to come out of Closed Session at 42 

6:42 PM.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 43 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting 44 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner 45 

not voting. 46 

 47 

 48 

Re-Convened @ 7:00 PM 49 

 50 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 51 

 52 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs gave the invocation and led those present in the 53 

Pledge of Allegiance. 54 

 55 

 56 

Public Comments 57 

 58 

David Forbes of 100 Ridge Rd in Camden came before the board with the 59 

following comments pertaining to: 60 

 61 

 62 

151.404  MANDATORY STANDARDS FOR LAND DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES. 63 

 64 

I. In the cases of natural grade differences greater than nine inches between 65 

adjoining lots of the subject property, the county may require (based on 66 

size and shape of lot) a stormwater management plan prepared by a state 67 

licensed engineer, land surveyor, or landscape architect that deviate from 68 

these requirements.  The stormwater plan shall verify that the proposed 69 

development will not create flooding or nuisance conditions on the lower 70 

adjacent lots.  In no case shall the rear and side yard no fill zones be 71 

encroached upon with fill. 72 

 73 

Mr. Forbes is being held up from building on 111 Dogwood Dr. due to the 74 

requirements stated above.  He is working with a local engineering company and 75 

the county planning department to establish a wastewater drainage plan.   76 

 77 

Mr. Forbes makes the following requests of the Commissioners: 78 

 79 

Attachment A - 2



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

1. They look into this Ordinance. 80 

2. They provide copies of any policies or set of guidelines the county uses to 81 

determine if such a plan will be required. 82 

3. He would like to know who makes the final decision. 83 

Chairman McLain explains that the Commissioner do not respond during the 84 

meeting and thanks Mr. Forbes for his time. 85 

 86 

 87 

Consideration of Agenda  88 

 89 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Vice 90 

Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall requested to add New Business Item 4.E - North 91 

River Campground Grant Repayment. 92 

 93 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.  94 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 95 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 96 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 97 

voting. 98 

 99 

 100 

Presentations 101 

 102 

Item 3.A - ECBH & CoastalCare Presentation 103 

 104 

Presentation by Leza Wainwright, ECBH Executive Director & Bland Baker, 105 

ECBH Northern Region Director on the Consolidation of East Carolina 106 

Behavioral Health and CoastalCare and Request to Approve a Resolution of 107 

Support for an Alternative Governance Structure for the Area Authority serving 108 

Camden County. 109 

 110 

 111 
 112 

Item 3.B - Proposed Consolidation of Cooperative Extension Services 113 

 114 

The County Manager Mike Renshaw explains that State has revised the NC 115 

Cooperative Extension funding formula from 70% State/30% County to 50% 116 

State/50% County. He introduces Cooperative Extension director Cameron Lowe. 117 

 118 

Attachment A - 3



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

Ms. Lowe explains the results of a year strategic planning process. 119 

 Core Program Identification 120 

 Bolstering Communication and Branding Image 121 

 Strengthening Capacity for Impact through Collaboration and 122 

Partnerships 123 

 Core staffing model to distribute resources more efficiently. 124 

NC Coop Ext provides direct support to North Carolinas #1 industry, agricultural.   125 

Agriculture representing a $78 billion dollar impact to the state of NC and a $60 126 

million dollar impact to Camden County. 127 

 128 

The Current staffing model only utilizes about $29,000 of the budgeted $42,000 129 

to provide: 130 

 1 Agent 131 

 1 Administrative Assistant  132 

The new core staffing model designed by NCSU includes  133 

 1 Ag Agent - (funded at 50/50) 134 

 1 4H Agent - (funded at 50/50) 135 

 1 Administrative Assistant - (funded at 50/50) 136 

 ½ Family and Consumer Science Agent – (funded at 34/33/33)  137 

The combined staffing model will cost $86,000. 138 

The standalone staffing model will cost $75,000.   139 

 140 

There was much discussion among the board and staff pertaining to the benefits 141 

and drawbacks of the proposed solutions. 142 

 143 

 144 
 145 

Item 3.C - NCACC April Board Update Video 146 

 147 

The board watched the April 20, 2015 video update from the NCACC. 148 

 149 

 150 

Public Hearings - NONE 151 

 152 

 153 

Old Business - NONE 154 

Attachment A - 4



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 155 

 156 

New Business 157 

 158 

Item 4.A - Register of Deeds Courthouse Software System 159 

 160 

Register of Deeds Tammie Krauss has conducted extensive research as to an 161 

optional software package for use in the Register of Deeds Office. The Register of 162 

Deeds Office has utilized Cott Software Systems since March 2011 (see attached 163 

contract agreement). Several issues related to technical support and customer 164 

service have been identified since entering into this agreement with Cott Software 165 

Systems. In addition, the current contract with Cott Software Systems expires on 166 

June 30, 2015. 167 

 168 

The Register of Deeds has spoken with Raleigh-based software vendor 169 

Courthouse Software System (CSS). Based upon discussions with other nearby 170 

jurisdictions that currently use CSS, the Register of Deeds is confident that this 171 

system offers a more user-friendly and customer-focused software solution. 172 

Additionally, the Register of Deeds believes that CSS provides more effective and 173 

timely technical support for the office staff. The Register of Deeds has obtained a 174 

proposed contract agreement from CSS that better meets the needs of her office. 175 

 176 

  

Attachment A - 5



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 
 

 
 

 177 

 178 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to authorize the county manager to 179 

notify Cott Software Systems and execute the contract as presented by 180 

Attachment A - 6



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

Courthouse Software System.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, 181 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and 182 

Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; 183 

and no Commissioner not voting. 184 

 185 

 186 
 187 

Item 4.B - Proposal for Preliminary Engineering Analyses for Wastewater 188 

Treatment Facility, Camden Core-Area 189 

 190 

In June 2010 the County retained the services of McGill Associates to produce a 191 

Long Range Water and Sewer Comprehensive Master Plan 2010- 2030 (attached 192 

to this report). The purpose of this Plan was to examine future water and 193 

wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) needs within the County. The Plan describes 194 

the existing WWTP which was constructed in South Mills Township in 2007 and 195 

brought online in March 2008. The Plan also describes the treatment challenges 196 

of pumping existing and projected waste flow from the Core Area (Courthouse 197 

Township) to the existing plant located in South Mills and makes 198 

recommendation for a second WWTP to be located in the Core Area.   199 

 200 

Based upon the above Plan recommendations as well as ongoing and projected 201 

commercial and residential growth projected to occur within the next two years, 202 

staff began researching various WWTP options for the Core Area that would 203 

provide cost-effective wastewater treatment. During consultations with engineers 204 

and experts in the field of wastewater treatment, extensive information was 205 

obtained concerning the use of amphidrome highrate infiltration technology as a 206 

means for treatment. This technology involves the construction of underground 207 

treatment/reaction chambers and the use of sand ponds that effectively treat 208 

wastewater to meet or exceed State standards. Benefits to this amphidrome 209 

technology include requiring far less land acquisition as large spray-field acreage, 210 

as is currently used at the existing South Mills WWTP, is not required. Another 211 

benefit is in reduced operating costs associated with electricity usage for plant 212 

blower fans (these blowers run less often) and reduced treatment chemical usage 213 

due to more consistent temperatures due to the fact that the waste reaction 214 

chambers are buried underground. Staff recently toured an Amphidrome system 215 

WWTP in Currituck County (Maple Commerce Park) which was constructed 216 

approximately two years ago and has been very successful.  217 

 218 

Staff intends to make application this fiscal year for an Economic Development 219 

Agency (EDA) grant which, if awarded, would provide funding for plant 220 

Attachment A - 7



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

construction in the amount of $500,000. The application deadline for this federal 221 

grant is June 12, 2015.  222 

 223 

In order to better meet the County’s wastewater treatment needs and prepare the 224 

required EDA grant application materials, staff is recommending that a viable 225 

WWTP site of 15-20 acres capable of supporting the operation of an amphidrome 226 

technology plant be identified within the Core Area and that preliminary geology 227 

and hydrology analyses be performed in preparation for site acquisition. Staff has 228 

had discussions with the owner of a 20 acre parcel located along HWY 343 South 229 

and the owner has indicated that he would permit these analyses on his property 230 

with the understanding that a potential land purchase would be contingent upon 231 

a positive engineering site report.  232 

 233 

Hyman Robey Engineering has provided a fee proposal of $8,000 to prepare the 234 

EDA required Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) which includes preparation 235 

of a schematic site plan as well as a project construction feasibility analysis and 236 

report concerning permit requirements and construction timelines. Hyman 237 

Robey has committed to completing this PER by June 5 in order to meet EDA 238 

grant submittal timelines.  239 

 240 

Additionally Edwin Andrews, a geology and hydrology scientist with extensive 241 

professional experience in amphidrome high-rate infiltration technology in this 242 

region has provided a fee proposal of $15,000 to conduct geo-hydrology testing of 243 

the HWY 343 South site and prepare an evaluation as to the suitability of this 244 

preferred site for the construction of a Core Area WWTP. 245 

 246 

In the event that the preliminary geology and hydrology analyses and the PER 247 

are positive and indicate suitability for an amphidrome WWTP at the preferred 248 

HWY 343 South site, the County Manager and County Attorney would request 249 

authorization from the Board of Commissioners to negotiate the purchase of this 250 

site. 251 

 252 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the Preliminary 253 

Engineering Report by Hyman Robey Engineering and authorize the county 254 

manager to execute a contract to get the preliminary grant application started.  255 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 256 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 257 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 258 

voting. 259 

 260 

Attachment A - 8



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the $15,000 proposal 261 

submitted by Edwin Andrews to conduct geo-hydrology testing and to authorize 262 

the county manager to execute the contract.  The motion passed 5-0 with 263 

Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, 264 

Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 265 

Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 266 

 267 
 268 

Item 4.C - Set Hearing Dates-2015 Board of Equalization and Review 269 

 270 

Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson advised the board that pursuant to G.S. 105-271 

322(e), the hearing dates for the 2015 Board of Equalization and Review need to 272 

be set in order to advertise at the appropriate time. 273 

 274 

She recommended that the Board of Equalization & Review convene on May 4th, 275 

2015 and adjourn September 21st, 2015. 276 

 277 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the hearing dates as 278 

presented by the tax Administrator. The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman 279 

McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton 280 

Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner 281 

absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 282 

 283 
 284 

Item 4.D - 2014 Advertisement of Tax Liens on real property 285 

 286 

Tax Administrator, Lisa Anderson stated that pursuant to G.S. 105-369(a), the Tax 287 

Administrator must report to the County Commissioners the total amount of 288 

unpaid taxes on real property for the current fiscal year that currently have liens.  289 

Ms. Anderson presented the April 15th report of unpaid taxes on real property 290 

with current liens totaling $326,834.98 also mentioning that the figure shall 291 

change over time with collections and releases. 292 

 293 

Pursuant to G.S. 105-369(c), the County Commissioners need to set the date for 294 

advertising the tax lien for real property. Ms. Anderson recommends setting the 295 

advertising date to April 27th, 2015 296 

 297 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the recommendations as 298 

presented by the tax administrator.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman 299 

McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton 300 

Attachment A - 9



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner 301 

absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 302 

 303 
 304 

Item 4.E - North River Campground Grant Repayment 305 

 306 

Chairman McLain requests to be recused from this agenda item as on the agenda.   307 

 308 

The county attorney states that he conferred with Chairman McLain and based on 309 

the details of that conversation Chairman McLain has valid reason to be recused 310 

as they are a client of his.   311 

 312 

Vice Chairman Sandra Duckwall calls for a motion to recuse Chairman McLain 313 

from this agenda item.  Commissioner Clayton Riggs makes a motion to recuse 314 

Chairman McLain from this agenda item.  The motion passes 5-0 with Chairman 315 

McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton 316 

Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner 317 

absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 318 

 319 

Chairman McLain steps down and leaves the room as Vice Chairwoman Sandra 320 

Duckwall steps up as Chair. 321 

 322 

Vice Chair Duckwall states that based on action taken in closed session regarding 323 

North River Campground the board will need to make two motions. 324 

 325 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to authorize the county manager and 326 

county attorney to pay and recoup grant funds.  The motion passed 4-0 with Vice 327 

Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom 328 

White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and 329 

Chairman McLain not voting. 330 

 331 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to authorize a budget amendment 332 

consistent with the action taken in the first motion. The motion passed 4-0 with 333 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and 334 

Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; 335 

and Chairman McLain not voting. 336 

 337 

Chairman McLain reenters the room and takes his seat as Chairman. 338 

 339 

 340 

Attachment A - 10



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 341 

Board Appointments 342 

 343 

Item 5.A - Library Board of Trustees 344 

 345 

The County manager advised the board that the recommended appointment to 346 

the Library Board of Trustees Victoria Hagemeister has 25 years of experience 347 

working in public libraries’ and has her Master’s degree in Library Science,   348 

 349 

 
 350 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to appoint Victoria Hagemeister to 351 

the Library Board of Trustees for a 3 year term expiring 4/19/2018.  The motion 352 

passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners 353 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner 354 

voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 355 

 356 

 357 

Consent Agenda 358 

 359 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 360 

presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 361 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting 362 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner 363 

not voting. 364 

 365 

 366 

Attachment A - 11



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 367 

Item 6.A - Draft Minutes 368 

 February 2nd, 2015 369 

 February 16th, 2015370 

 371 

Item 6.B - Tax Collection Report - March 372 

 
 373 

 374 
 375 

 376 

 377 

 378 

 379 

 380 

 381 

 382 

 383 

 384 

 385 

 386 

Attachment A - 12



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

Item 6.C - Tax Authorization to Collect (June Renewals) 387 

 
 388 

 389 
 390 

Item 6.D - Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases 391 

 
 392 

 393 

 394 

 395 

Attachment A - 13



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 396 

Item 6.E - Resolution in Support of WW II Coastwise Merchant Mariners 397 

 

 

 
 

Attachment A - 14



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 
 398 

 399 
 400 

Item 6.F - Surplus Sales on Gov Deals 401 

 
 402 

 403 
  404 

Attachment A - 15



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 405 

Item 6.G - HWY 158 Landscape Agreements 406 

 

 

Attachment A - 16



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 

 
 407 

 408 

Attachment A - 17



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

Item 6.H - Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2015-04-01 409 

 410 

Ordinance 2015-04-01 Rezoning Application (UDO 2015-03-11) 411 

Harbinger Land & Timber LLC and Assorted Development Corp – Gary Dunston 412 

 413 

Mr. Gary Dunstan owner/part owner of both properties has applied to rezone 414 

approximately 41 (farmland) of the 50 plus acres from Basic Residential (R3-2) to 415 

Basic Residential (R3-1). Property located at the intersections of Sandy Lane, 416 

Keeter Barn and Sharon Church Roads in South Mills Township. Staff presented 417 

the rezoning to the Planning Board on April 15, 2015 with the applicant present 418 

and after discussion the Planning Board made the following motions: 419 

1. Consistency Statement: Approved a motion that the application for 420 

rezoning was consistent with both the CAMA Land Use Plan and 421 

Comprehensive Plan as both allowed densities of 1 acre lots. 422 

2. Motion was made and approved to rezone the 41 acres (farmland) from 423 

Basic Residential (R3-2) to Basic Residential R3-1). 424 

Set Public Hearing for Monday, May 4, 2015. 425 

 426 

 427 

Commissioner’s Report 428 

 429 

Commissioner Riggs mentioned the Adequate Public Facilities Committee meet 430 

and believes they are off to a great start. 431 

 432 

Chairman McLain thanks the Camden Sheriff’s office and the Pasquotank-433 

Camden EMS for their service at the Annual TarWheel.    434 

 435 

 Paddle for the Boarder at the state park May 2nd 436 

 Dollar General Grand Opening is May 9th at 7:30 am.  437 

 438 

 439 

County Manager’s Report 440 

 441 

County Manager Mike Renshaw had the following items to report: 442 

 Dollar General has had a soft opening and is doing very well 443 

 Kids Talk Government Day – May 15th, 2015   444 

 Budget work sessions will be May 19th and May 21st 445 

Attachment A - 18



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 446 

 447 

Recess Commissioner's Meeting 448 

 449 

 450 

SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT  451 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 452 

 453 

Call to Order 454 

 455 

Chairman McLain called the SCWSD Board of Directors meeting to order at 8:28 456 

pm.  457 

 458 

Public Comments - None 459 

 460 

Consideration of Agenda 461 

 462 

Commissioner Riggs made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. The 463 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 464 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 465 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 466 

voting. 467 

 468 

New Business - 4.A. Fire Flow Requirements for New Subdivision  469 

 470 

Public Works director David Credle comes to the board to present proposed Fire 471 

Flow requirements.  He advised the board of two recent events provoking this 472 

proposal.   473 

 A 9 lot subdivision in South Mills, Green Meadows, was 1000 feet away 474 

from 6 inch water main.  South Mills Water is requiring the developer to 475 

upgrade this section to 6 inch water main.   476 

 Neck Road residents in Shiloh are subject to high insurance rates due to 477 

not having any fire flow, hydrants or fire protection. 478 

David Credle is recommending that the county should be uniform and therefore 479 

would like to enforce the same requirements as South Mills Water. 480 

 481 

Sandra Duckwall made a motion to approve the fire flow requirements for New 482 

Subdivisions.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 483 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting 484 

Attachment A - 19



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner 485 

not voting. 486 

 487 

Other Business  488 

 489 

Commissioner Riggs would like an update from the Fire Flow measurements.  490 

David Credle states that all of the fire hydrants have been identified, located, 491 

entered into a maintenance schedule.  The Fire Departments are doing the actual 492 

flow tests and David is unsure of the current status of their tests. 493 

 494 

Adjourn 495 

 496 

At 8:35 PM, Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to 497 

come before the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors, 498 

hearing none the meeting was adjourned. 499 

 500 

 501 

Reconvene Commissioner’s Meeting 502 

 503 

 504 

Information from Board and Staff 505 

 506 

The following items were provided to the Board for their information, and a copy 507 

of these items is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 508 

 509 

A. Economic Impacts of Wind Projects 510 

B. Grid and Military Impacts of Wind Projects 511 

C. Health Impacts of Wind Projects 512 

D. Wildlife and Environmental Impacts of Wind Projects 513 

E. County of Scotland Resolution regarding HB 589 514 

F. AC-Monday Morning Briefing-April 13 515 

G. PCEMS Reports-March 2015 516 

H. NCACC Risk Management Pool-Stewardship Report 517 

I. AC April 16 2015 Agenda Packet 518 

 519 

 520 

 521 

 522 

 523 

 524 

Attachment A - 20



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – April 20
th

, 2015 

 525 

Meeting Adjourned 526 

 527 

At 8:37 PM, Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to 528 

come before the Board of Commissioners, hearing none, and by acclamation the 529 

meeting was adjourned. 530 

 531 

 532 

   533 

 Chairman Michael McLain 534 

 Camden County Board of Commissioners 535 

 536 

 537 

ATTEST: 538 

 539 

 540 

  541 

Angela L. Wooten 542 

Clerk to the Board 543 

Attachment A - 21


	AGENDA
	PRESENTATIONS
	North Carolina Forest Service
	Camden County OpenBudget
	Camden County Sheriff’s Range

	OLD BUSINESS
	Solar Farms and amendments to Floodplain Management language
	Ordinance No. 2015-06-03

	NEW BUSINESS
	Monthly Tax Report
	Participant Code of Conduct Policy

	BOARD APPOINTMENTS
	EARL

	CONSENT AGENDA 
	Draft Minutes
	April 6th, 2015
	April 20th, 2015

	Budget Amendments 
	2015-2016-BA001

	Tax Collection Report
	Collection Report for June

	Tax Refunds, Pickups & Releases
	Authorization to Collect
	Volunteer
	Set Public Meeting
	Staff Report
	3575 Sketch Plans 
	Development Impact Statement

	Stepping Up Resolution
	STEPPING UP
	Technical Assistance
	Key Resources
	Case Study
	Resolution No. 2015-08-01

	Field Use MoU 
	Memorandum of Understanding


	SCWSD 
	Monthly Update to the Board

	INFORMATION
	Library Monthly Report
	Library Annual Report
	Industrial Commission


	Text20: 
	NameRow1: 
	PositionTitleRow1: 
	OrganizationRow1: 
	NameRow2: 
	PositionTitleRow2: 
	OrganizationRow2: 
	NameRow3: 
	PositionTitleRow3: 
	OrganizationRow3: 
	NameRow4: 
	PositionTitleRow4: 
	OrganizationRow4: 
	NameRow5: 
	PositionTitleRow5: 
	OrganizationRow5: 
	NameRow6: 
	PositionTitleRow6: 
	OrganizationRow6: 
	NameRow7: 
	PositionTitleRow7: 
	OrganizationRow7: 
	NameRow8: 
	PositionTitleRow8: 
	OrganizationRow8: 
	NameRow9: 
	PositionTitleRow9: 
	OrganizationRow9: 
	NameRow10: 
	PositionTitleRow10: 
	OrganizationRow10: 
	NamePositionRow1: 
	OpportunitiesRow1: 
	BarriersRow1: 
	NamePositionRow2: 
	OpportunitiesRow2: 
	BarriersRow2: 
	NamePositionRow3: 
	OpportunitiesRow3: 
	BarriersRow3: 
	NamePositionRow4: 
	OpportunitiesRow4: 
	BarriersRow4: 
	NamePositionRow5: 
	OpportunitiesRow5: 
	BarriersRow5: 
	NamePositionRow1_2: 
	OpportunitiesRow1_2: 
	BarriersRow1_2: 
	NamePositionRow2_2: 
	OpportunitiesRow2_2: 
	BarriersRow2_2: 
	NamePositionRow3_2: 
	OpportunitiesRow3_2: 
	BarriersRow3_2: 
	NamePositionRow4_2: 
	OpportunitiesRow4_2: 
	BarriersRow4_2: 
	NamePositionRow5_2: 
	OpportunitiesRow5_2: 
	BarriersRow5_2: 
	Text21: 
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	fill_3: 
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	fill_4: 
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	fill_5: 
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	fill_6: 
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	fill_7: 
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	fill_8: 
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	fill_9: 
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	fill_10: 


